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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXKXE
TREASURER’S REPORT

S EHE

The financial year 2016/17 heralded a new fiscal
cycle for the triennium 2016-2019. With prudent
financial management and amidst accelerated
global investment markets, | am pleased to report
that the University further strengthened its financial
position. Starting from 2016/17, the financial results
of the CUHK Health Limited and the CUHK Medical
Centre Limited, in view of their materiality, have
been incorporated into the consolidated financial
statements of the University. A consolidated
surplus of $1.5 billion for 2016/17 and consolidated
net assets of $20.03 billion as at 30 June 2017
were recorded. The improved financial strength
will continue to enable the University to support
the resource needs identified in the 5-year period
covered by the Strategic Plan 2016-2020.

The financial statements report the income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by the government or supported by
other non-government funds. The tables and charts
on pages 6 to 8 provide additional information and
analyses of the financial results of the University by
sources of funding and their attribution to different
categories of activities. Comments and highlights
below only refer to the operating results of the
University.

Income

Total income increased by $1,263 million or 15.8% to
$9,235 million in 2016/17. The increase was mainly
attributable to a surge in interest and net investment
income and donations and benefactions, coupled
with a slight growth in government subventions,
tuition, programme and other fees, ancillary services
and other income. Government subventions
accounted for $4,835 million and recorded an
increase of $37 million compared to the previous
financial year, mainly due to additional allocations
to block grants and earmarked grants to support
increase in student numbers, inflation and upward
pay adjustment for April 2016. Tuition, programme
and other fees slightly went up by $18 million to
$2,018 million, of which 51.3% was contributed to
by non-UGC (University Grants Committee) funded
programmes. Fees income from non-UGC funded
programmes slightly exceeded that from the UGC
funded programmes, owing to self-financing tuition
fees being charged for the former in the absence
of direct subsidies from the government. The
interest and net investment income rebounded by
$846 million due to the positive outlook in global
investment markets as reflected by major indices,
slow-down in US dollar interest rate hike tempo and
the on-going negotiations to clear the uncertainties
brought on by Brexit.
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Notwithstanding the unavailability of a new round of
UGC Matching Grant Scheme, the donations and
benefactions income grew by $287 million or 70.3%
to $696 million in 2016/17, mainly for the CUHK
Medical Centre project.

Expenditure

Total expenditure rose by 6.9% or $502 million to
$7,811 million in 2016/17, attributable mainly to the
upward revision of pay adjustment and the planned
increase in learning, research and support services,
as well as for capacity building.

Expenditure on learning and research amounted
to $6,228 million and accounted for 80% of total
expenditure, reaffirming the University’s continuous
advancement in teaching, learning and research. On
the other hand, expenditure on institutional support,
including premises and related expenses, student
and general education services, and management
and general, was kept at 20%.

Operating Results

The University achieved a total operating result of
$1,425 million for 2016/17, comprising surpluses
of $469 million, $14 million and $942 million in
recurrent government funds, UGC matching grants
fund and non-government funds, respectively.

Financial Position

The University’s net assets increased by 8.4% or
$1.43 billion to $18.45 billion as at 30 June 2017. The
increase in investments in subsidiaries represented
a capital contribution of $400 million, in addition to
$100 million already contributed last year, to the
CUHK Medical Centre Limited via its intermediate
holding company, the CUHK Health Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the University. Other
investments increased substantially by $881 million
or 12.4% to $7,996 million, due to the investment in
held-to-maturity bond mandate. The cash and short-
term deposits increased by 3.2% to $9,418 million.
Apart from supporting the University’s operations,
the balance is reserved for additional investments
in bonds and private assets.

The net book value of fixed assets slightly dropped
to the level of $5,780 million as at 30 June 2017
arising from the provision for depreciation during the
financial year. For assets acquired by funds from the
government or government agencies with conditions
attached, the balances of their aggregate net book
value were treated as deferred capital funds. The
total amount in deferred capital funds slightly fell by
0.6% to $3,419 million as at 30 June 2017.
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Taking into account the operating results achieved
for the financial year 2016/17, the General and
Development Reserve Fund stood at $2.73 billion,
the UGC matching grants fund at $1.43 billion,
and the total restricted funds at $14.29 billion, with
an aggregate total of $18.45 billion to support the
University’s long-term development in meeting its
strategic goals and missions.

In addition to recurring grants from the UGC
covering basic infrastructure to carry out research
activities and to fund a certain level of research,
the University had also secured substantial funding
through different sources to support specific
research projects. In the financial year 2016/17, a
total of $233 million was recognized as designated
income for research from grants from the UGC and
its Research Grants Council. Another $474 million
came from the private sector and other sources in
the form of sponsorships or donations.

Donation and benefactions income increased by
$287 million or 70.3% to $696 million in the financial
year 2016/17. The University is most grateful to
the alumni, donors, sponsors and friends of the
University for their generous financial support for
its academic development, research activities,
scholarships and capital development programmes.

In addition to the contribution of $18.9 million in
2015/16, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
donated another $28.7 million in the financial year
2016/17 to support scholarships for outstanding
students and other activities. The University is again
most appreciative of the continuous support from the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

Acquisitions amounting to $357 million were made
for fixed assets during the financial year, with $243
million spent on equipment, furniture and fittings
for the purposes of teaching, research and student
development, and $114 million on premises and
related development projects.
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During the financial year, construction of the Jockey
Club Postgraduate Halls in Area 39 was in steady
progress, with completion targeted in 2018. Other
new capital projects selected by the government
under the 2017 Capital Works Resource Allocation
Exercise included a 300-place student hostel for
New Asia College, a 250-place hostel on United
College campus and two 338-place student hostels
in Area 39.

For the CUHK Medical Centre project, the
construction was in good progress after the execution
of the lease modification and award of the design
and construction contract in late 2016. The ground
breaking ceremony was held in December 2016 and
completion is expected in the first quarter of 2020.

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution and
in fulfilment of its role, the University provides learning
opportunities at sub-degree and postgraduate
levels, as well as lifelong learning programmes, to
complement the UGC-funded academic activities.
The main purpose of the University’s self-financed
programmes is to meet community and societal
needs. As a result of a slackened demand in higher
diploma programmes, revenues from non-UGC
funded programmes recorded a slight reduction of
0.6% to $1,035 million in the year.

UGC has kick-started the planning exercise for the
2019-2022 triennium. In the light of the development
of the sector-wide Accountability Framework
and the University Accountability Agreement, the
University will be measured against system-wide
and institution-specific key performance indicators
in a number of imperative areas including financial
health and institutional sustainability. While the
prevailing competitive allocation and bidding
mechanism will be continued in the planning
exercise, the research funding support from the
Research Grants Council will be very stringent due
to a significant drop in the rate of the investment
return of the Research Endowment Fund. This would
inevitably pose continuous financial uncertainty and
pressure to the University.
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In view of the importance of the Research
Assessment Exercise (RAE) in the funding allocation
mechanism, the University has started preparation
for the RAE 2020. In the budget plan for 2017/18,
the University will consolidate its resources for
capacity building by combining the central faculty
slots, strategic recruitment and competitiveness
enhancement schemes. The University will spare no
effort in recruiting top-notched international talents.

In this connection, on behalf of the University, |
would like to thank our previous Treasurer, Mr. Roger
Luk, for his remarkable leadership in guiding the
University’s financial management and contribution
to building up the fiscal strength of the University
during his tenure from 1999 to 2017. Our heartfelt
thanks also go to the University’s key stakeholders
for their relentless support to the University in
sustaining its long-term competitiveness as
a leading research comprehensive university
recognized nationally and internationally.

Anthony Neoh
Treasurer
27 October 2017
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2016-2017

BAFSFEE 2016-2017 (The University X&)

Total #2%8 $9,235 million BEE T

Government Subventions

AT EBh
($4,835 million & T )

. Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees
BE . RERHEMNE
($2,018 million HET)

Interest and Net Investment Income
52.3% FMERKREFW
($847 million BE T )

. Donations and Benefactions
BRI
($696 million BEIT)
5.9%

3.2% 7. 5%

0 Ancillary Services Income
2o SRR
($294 million BET)

. Other Income
HA
($545 million BEIT)

9.2%

Expenditure 3z

Total #8%8 $7,811 million BE&JT
. Management and General

- EER—YEIH ($388 milion HETT)
0.4% 3.0%

5.5% 5.0% | Premises and Related Expenses _
1.9% 1BFRAEMIE ($734 milion H&T)

. Student and General Education Services

BAER—WHEEH ($432 milion BETT)

. Other Activities
H{thZEE ($29 million BETT)

. Instruction and Research
BRI (35,683 million BEIT)

. Library
BEZ8E ($232 million HET)

Central Computing Facilities

 RERLEEHE ($165 milion BETT)

. Other Academic Services
H{th 22 ARFE ($148 million HBTT)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2016-2017

BAFEHEE 2016-2017 (The University A2 )

Income Analysis I A 53R

Year Ended 30 June ANA=1H (F4#R) 2017 2016

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
Government Subventions idSE=1:0] 4,835 52.3% 4,798 60.2%
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - RERHEMIE 2,018 21.9% 2,000 25.1%
Interest and Net Investment Income FERBEFNR 847 9.2% 1 0.0%
Donations and Benefactions BRI R BIR 696 7.5% 409 51%
Ancillary Services Income 5B BRFEUIA 294 3.2% 271 3.4%
Other Income HitA 545 5.9% 493 6.2%
Total ($ million) W5 (H87T) 9,235 100.0% 7,972 100.0%
Expenditure Analysis X 53

xB= 27 [ e

Year Ended 30 June ANB=+H8 (F#R)

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
Instruction and Research HERHRE 5,683 72.7% 5,290 72.4%
Library S 232 3.0% 235 3.2%
Central Computing Facilities R EREES 165 2.1% 162 2.2%
Other Academic Services HAth B2 RS 148 1.9% 145 2.0%
Management and General EIER—RER 388 5.0% 318 4.4%
Premises and Related Expenses BFRERZE 734 9.4% 697 9.5%
Student and General Education Services B4 K —MHEEHE 432 5.5% 427 5.8%
Other Activities HihE# 29 0.4% 35 0.5%
Total ($ million) HEE (BEx) 7,811 100.0% 7,309 100.0%

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the following funding sources

FFEETHNSEEEERRTINES

Year Ended 30 June NB=1A8 (F4#) 2011 _
(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
General and Development Reserve Fund —fi B RERES 303 21.3% 27 4.1%
Matching Grants Fund ECEidBh & 14 1.0% (69) -10.5%
Non-Government Fund FHEE 1,108 77.7% 701 106.4%
Capital Projects HEEH (122) -8.6% 74 11.2%
University Development REBER 906 63.6% 34 5.2%
Research Activities A (125) -8.8% 63 9.6%
General Academic Use —MR BB A& 281 19.7% 223 33.8%
New Colleges HER 16 1.1% 13 2.0%
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REBE RERHBESE 153 10.8% 230 34.9%
Other Activities HAthEF# (1) -0.1% 64 9.7%
Total ($ million) % (587) 1,425 100.0% 659 100.0%



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEPIKRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2016-2017
BAFEHEE 2016-2017 ( The University A& )

Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
RIB—EFERZE-AREFAR=1+H » KBMEFFARRHMTAT

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars LUB#E Z LT )

2017
“ET—tFE
Government Funded BIFFEZ B} Nar-Covarmem Total
ota
Recurring Non Recurring Funded @S
i SR IFERTRE)
Income YT A 5,136 868 3,231 9,235
Expenditure 3z HH 4,667 854 2,290 7,811
Surplus
Bt 469 14 941 1,424
2016
“EREE
Government Funded Hﬁﬁﬁb Non-Government Total
ota
Recurring Non Recurring Funded st
R JEAERIE FRIFTEE
Income YA 5,094 784 2,094 7,972
Expenditure 4,848 853 1,608 7,309
Surplus/(Deficit)
B8/ (B 246 (69) 486 663
Government Funded Recurring . Government Funded Non Recurring Non-government Funded
B S S &E B BUSIERE R & B JERIRFE BY
HK$'M R E T
10,000
9,000
8,000
3,231
7,000 2,094
2,290 1,608
6,000
5,000 -
4,000
3,000 -
2,000
1,000 941
14 486
_t 469 26
(69)
(1,000) = Income Income Expenditure Expenditure Surplus Surplusé(gﬁe?ﬁc)it)
A A X BER Be: /(B8
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oRvE L

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HERAPIABRER

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“the University”), the Trustees
of the four separately established constituent Colleges, namely
The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia
College, The Trustees of United College and The Trustees of
Shaw College, and CUHK Health Limited and CUHK Medical
Centre Limited (collectively “the Group”) set out on pages 12 to
97, which comprise the Consolidated and University Statements
of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017, the Consolidated
and University Statements of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure, the Consolidated and University Statements
of Changes in Funds and the Consolidated and University
Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
University as at 30 June 2017 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for
such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This reportis made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.

REGRAEREFE LS BMNEEUHRSEARHLR
BHRBHE  MSREMBRRELEEMATHRRAEEHR
RIRHRES U BRRAODENALSHES - MERSHBRRTFT
TEFRERFFEL SE AR TR B E A SHERMRA

ERBESHBRRE REGEETHAEREREEENE
7 LEERER T HERHECEEENER - MRERFHES

ENEER  RIERESHEERABERFILEE - FIEHt
BEMERSGSE -

B EEEmMRESERITEEABRENMBRSBENEE -

HMMBERE  RHERSUERREREES A FEERFER R
BHMBEAERIANGSERE - THRSERMERA%EE
W - HAIRRE (FEDPIABRE) (F11098)R7%E12(7) M
RE - ERERRETWSE - R - BANBRETTRER
A& - MM FRE/ENAE - HEAMHBATEETREE
BEEE -

BEFREERKTNRE @ EFRERERE (FHEETEA) &7
WER - BE—ERERBUATFERAEAESIR o SRERERR o] BAFRRR
FEERSEERSIE - MR G EFEH EME B BRI R TR &R
BRREASREMBBRELNEERE - AIBRNSERL
ARIFERX -

TIRIE (FRERTEN) ETENERED  AMERTERH
B RIS T ERREEE o 9

- BRI EER EE E E ER M E H  BIRR T E E AT RBRL
BB - SRET R TERTE P ABEELERS - U FE S
ENERHER - ERHMSRNER - AREFFEIRED KSR
RS - BRER - ERRUL - NERERAEMESZ L - FItbAREE
BIRAFEM SN ER R AR RS R RAE R IRA R
BHMERERBURAIER o

- THREZHERMASTES - URHEENEER - EEML
FEH AR BERAMEHNERMERER -

- AERESFFEASHBERNEEN REL SEHERTAMERRE
EMoEt -



- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’'s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

27 October 2017
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXXER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

RaZzEBER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

HE-_FT-tFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#EFrT5IR)

Note 2016
FitEE
Income A
Government Subventions BRTE B 4 4,797,989
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE . RENEMINE 5 2,003,521
Interest and Net Investment Income FE R E BN 6 279
Donations and Benefactions b=y NE=EY 7 460,740
Ancillary Services Income EHENARTSUIA 8 276,921
Other Income Hithig A 9 498,253
8,037,703
Expenditure Xl 10 -
Learning and Research Bilf &R
Instruction and Research BENAE 5,293,476
Library EE 234,695
Central Computing Facilities th RE R 161,825
Other Academic Services Hth#UEBARE 158,898
Institutional Support AEBEHBNARTS
Management and General EEN—HEEIE 318,700
Premises and Related Expenses EBFAEERE 703,828
Student and General Education Services BYN—RBEER 467,810
Other Activities HAthEE5 40,148
7,379,380
Surplus for the year rFEERER 658,323
Item that will not be classified to FTEEHSEERR
surplus or deficit EBEZIER
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit EH:IERENEETE 17.1(v) (3,583)
Scheme
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H#&aEHIEEELS
to surplus or deficit giEsia2IEE
Changes in Fair Value of ot EMNIRE (28,911)
Available-for-Sale Investments NREBEEF
Release of Revaluation Reserve upon FH ET] (g A -
Disposal of Available-for-sale Investments NREBEZEEMm
B hERE
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FFEEZMPHET 625,829
Attributable to: REn:
Surplus of Recurrent Government BrEHBAEMERER 245,643
Funds transferred to General and BE-RABRFHES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent Government  JEEEMBIRTEBE R/ (E518) (68,691)
Funds transferred from University Grants EERE G HWE
Committee (“UGC”) Matching Grants Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds IEBATEBIE RS 448,877
transferred to Restricted Funds BFERES _

625,829

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE—THEENAHEEZMFARMERERZ 5



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

ERAEPXKE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANC

RaMBERiRR
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

—2—-tFXA=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

IAL POSITION

Note 2016
PitEE

Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Fixed Assets BE&EE 15 5,995,341
Investments ®"E 16 4,360,343
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNEINEE 17 6,181
Prepayments and Other Receivables RAIMEREMEBKRRIE 18 150,461
10,512,326
Current Assets MENEE E—
Investments wE 16 3,474,582
Inventories 3= 395
Staff Loans BEEEM 26 219,666
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEMTIRTR ~ FRITRRIE R 18 565,519

Other Receivables HAthFEWTRIE

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks RENIRITRIAER 19 9,844,359
Current Liabilities RESHE 14,104,521
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRT N FEEH & 20 969,581
Provision for Employee Benefits EEREMER 21 463,103
Loans and Borrowings EEN 22 79,274
Deferred Income IEFEUR 5 23 565,695
2,077,653
Net Current Assets mENBEERE 12.026.868
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRESEE 22,539,194

Non-Current Liabilities ERENEE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRF S FERTE 20 -
Provision for Employee Benefits (=t 21 208,878
Loans and Borrowings fam 22 26,275
Deferred Income IEEUR 5 23 333,847
569,000
Deferred Capital Funds EESERE 24 3,441,269
NET ASSETS AEFE 18,528,925
Restricted Funds SRHEE 11 14,686,858
UGC Funds YEEET 12 3,842,067

TOTAL FUNDS E2@E

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 October 2017
REGNR"F—tFTHA- T+t AEMISEERILMFERE

Norm&n N. P. Leung 32 75{E

Chairman of the Council IRE2XF

A\_f\MJL/,

S
Anthony Neoh ZEF
Treasurer )&

P

Joseph J. Y. Sung jiitHEE

Vice-Chancellor & &

Salome Y. P. Lam t#x B3%
University Bursar B ¥ &

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERFE-TEEEA T LRSI BRR &7 -

18,528,925
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPXXB

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

HEETBEHR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

HE—T-tFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA##&FT5IR)

UGC Funds #E@&s£ (Note izt 12)

General and UGC Total Capital
Development Matching Funds
Reserve Fund  Grants
—MRAEE nEg
REEE EHENE b EEET
Balance - 1 July 2015 —2-hFtRA—H%&8R 2,400,038 1,483,528 3,883,566 2,507,536
Transfers from/(to) the BE/(E)ZENZR 245,643 (68,691) 176,952 45,977
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZEIR (218,451) - (218451) 559
Balance - 30 June 2016 ZE8-RERA=THR 2,427,230 1,414,837 3,842,067 2,554,072
and 1 July 2016 —E-RTEtRA—-[A&%
Transfers from/(to) the LEASHEIESETEES

Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer EE/E < ER

Balance - 30 June 2017 —E—-tFA=1TA%&%

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NEHRE-THEEN T LtEZHMERERBHERRC 5
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Restricted Funds Z=FEES (Note Hist11)

Endowment Other Building Research Others Investments Total Total
Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 11.1) Revaluation Funds
Funds Funds Reserve
Hith= BHIEH ffsRIEE Hih KREEMN
BEEE BEE H2E HE (BffEE 11.1) =] b BEEEH
3,700,572 3,510,874 119,141 715,926 3,286,542 178,939 14,019,530 17,903,096
155,215 (45,564) 15,721 156,208 150,231 (28,911) 448,877 625,829
(404,826) 567,592 9,729 (93,390) 138,787 - 218,451 -
3,450,961 4,032,902 144,591 778,744 3,575,560 150,028 14,686,858 18,528,925
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPXXR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HFARERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
BE_F-tFAA=THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

Note 2016
PtEE
Operating Activities ReESE
Surplus for the Year REERER 658,323
Adjustments for: HEIER
Depreciation e 10 454,288
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEEERE 98
Interest and Net Investment Income FEREE WS 6 (279)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEATEHAICCERNR 1,112,430
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Employee Retirement EERREMNEEZRL(IEM) (65)
Benefit Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable, FEMSTHRER ~ FE{HRRIE R ELfth FEUR (108,444)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FRIEZ R (3 H0)
Increase in Inventories =FEZIEm (46)
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FETIRFR FE R AR AZIB N 70,538
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits B S1aF &EfiZiZm 44,663
Decrease in Deferred Income BN R Z iR (15,870)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities & ;EBFIEEZHREFEE 1,103,206
Investing Activities 1BEES
Increase in Time Deposits with FIRHRBIR =B AT RTER (671,455)
Original Maturity over Three Months RZighn
Payment for Capital Expenditure BARRZIM (412,894)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEEMEWE 41
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRIRE (1,303,353)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREFREMIE 832,439
Dividend Received [=Ld:d= 27,616
Interest Received ERFE 196,557
Loans Granted to Staff HEEEM (34,350)
Loans Repaid by Staff HEEEM 31,547
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BB REFRERZRE B (1,333,482)



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEREPXKXER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

HREBTRER (@)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

HE_F-tFAA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5liR)

Note 2016
FfsE
Financing Activities BEEE
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds EEEEESZHY (93,674)
Proceeds from Loans and Borrowings ERAEMFREMIE -
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff BETPRHEZRITER 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan BETIETEM (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEEETHRRECRITER (4,000)
to Staff -
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) BB EEMELE/(ER)AERH (98,948)
Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash RERIMEEE W ZBIEM/GREL) (329,224)
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREEEY - FNER 870,890
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RENBESEY - FLRER 19

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE—THNEENAHEtEZHFARMFERTZ G

541,666
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

EEMZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

BEE_T-tFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

Note 2016
B
Income A
Government Subventions BATER 4 4,797,989
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - RE~HEMNE 5 2,000,482
Interest and Net Investment Income MERITE WS 6 766
Donations and Benefactions B i 7 409,037
Ancillary Services Income HHBIARFEUIA 8 270,614
Other Income HsA 9 492,866
971,754
Expenditure . 10
Learning and Research Bils R
Instruction and Research HE KRS 5,290,462
Library EES 234,695
Central Computing Facilities th REBAEEL it 161,825
Other Academic Services EL{th BB RS 144,622
Institutional Support A EHAARTE
Management and General EHEN—RGEIR 318,456
Premises and Related Expenses BFhEERH 696,831
Student and General Education Services BER—RBESE 426,561
Other Activities H{thEEF% 35,351
7,308,803
Surplus for the year TEERLR 662,951
Item that will not be reclassified *?%ﬁﬁﬁgﬂ%ﬁ
to surplus or deficit BiRZIRE
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit EFtERESEE 17.1(v) (3,583)
Scheme
Total comprehensive income for the year ANEERmHINIEEEE 659,368
Attributable to: SREBmnN:
Surplus of Recurrent Government BEMBAEERE 245 643
Funds transferred to General and BE-RLBEREES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent IFHEEMBFEREREN (EI8) (68,691)
Government Funds transferred ERRESRYHHNE
from UGC Matching Grants Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds IFATERNERER 482,416
transferred to Restricted Funds BEEHRAES
659,368

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERFE-THEEA TR KRS BRER &G -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXKE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BERR =
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017
—E—-tFXB=1H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE#TFT5lT)
Note 2016
PitEE
Non-Current Assets EREEE
Investments in Subsidiaries RItEASIHRE 13 210,257
Fixed Assets BEEE 15 5,921,651
Investments B’E 16 3,861,410
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNENEE 17 6,181
Prepayments and Other Receivables FERIEMEAMBIGRIE 18 150,277
10,149,776
Current Assets MENEE
Investments BE 16 3,253,063
Staff Loans HEEEM 26 219,666
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEUSTIRTA ~ FEfTTRIE A 18 549,423
Other Receivables HAthFEWRIE
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks RENIRITREEIEMN 19 9,129,526
13,151,678
Current Liabilities mENaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FETIRFR A FERTE 20 1,160,621
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEHER 21 460,960
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 22 79,274
Deferred Income EFEYES 23 565,695
2,266,550
Net Current Assets mEEEEE 10,885,128
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRESEE 21,034,904
Non-Current Liabilities EREEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EERMER 21 208,489
Loans and Borrowings =Eo 22 26,275
Deferred Income RN SR 23 333,847
568,611
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEEE 24 3,441,269
NET ASSETS BEFHE 17,025,024
Restricted Funds SREE 11 13,182,957
UGC Funds YEEET 12 3,842,067

TOTAL FUNDS EERH 17,025,024

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 October 2017
REENR_FT—tF+H :—I;ﬂ?tb)ﬁ&ﬁ@?ﬁé&bﬁﬁ%iﬁi%

/
%

Normér N. P. Leung ZZ75{E Joseph J. Y. Sung ;{22
Chairman of the Council IREE2FFE Vice-Chancellor & E
AN —
— !
Anthony Neoh ZEF Salome Y. P. Lam t#A B3
Treasurer S][E University Bursar B1#EE

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPXXKER
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

ETEDHR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

B#E—F—-tFA=THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA&#&F7T5lR)

UGC Funds i5=2HEE (Note FfizE 12)

General and UGC Total
Development Matching
Reserve Fund Grants
—MR R nEE
RisEE Ao BN EE ]
Balance - 1 July 2015 “T—hFtR—H#&ER 2,400,038 1,483,528 3,883,566
Transfers from/(to) the LS EIEAETEES 245,643 (68,691) 176,952
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer BEEBZER (218,451) ) (218,451)
Balance - 30 June 2016 —E-R"FRA=THR 2,427,230 1,414,837 3,842,067
and 1 July 2016 —E-XFtA—HB4&8%
Transfers from/(to) the BE/(E)ZHEHBZEE

Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Inter-fund Transfer EERBEIR

Balance - 30 June 2017 —E—tFRA=1THER

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERBE-THEEA T LEZKEREHBRKRZ D -
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Restricted Funds Z=RAES (Note KifzE 11)

Capital Endowment Other Building Research Others Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 11.2) Funds
Funds Funds
HthEFH EEIEH ARIER Hith
BEEE BAREE BE s EE (Mt 11.2) EEEL] BEEREH

2,431,498 3,491,415 3,141,728 119,496 715,926 2,582,027 12,482,090 16,365,656
48,884 144,385 (57,462) 15,721 156,208 174,680 482,416 659,368
- (405,493) 568,749 9,729 (93,390) 138,856 218,451 -
2,480,382 3,230,307 3,653,015 144,946 778,744  2,895563 13,182,957 17,025,024
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEREPXKR
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
BE-F-tFAA=tHLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5liR)

Note 2016
BifEE
Operating Activities &R
Surplus for the Year REEZRER 662,951
Adjustments for: FAEIER -
Depreciation e 10 451,374
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBTEEERE 98
Interest and Net Investment Income M EMIGE B R 6 766
Operating Surplus before Changes in EESEEIN LSRR 1,113,657
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Employee Retirement EERNEFEEZRS(3GM) (65)
Benefit Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable, FEWSTHRTR ~ FE{TRRIE A E Ath FEUL (103,810)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FRIEZ R (38 h0)
Increase in Accounts Payable FETIRFR N &R &S PRz 38N 74,875
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee & S5+ &EfigZigm 44,587
Benefits
Decrease in Deferred Income B TR Z iR (15,870)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities BEEEFREEZREETE 1,113,374
Investing Activities BEEE
Increase in Time Deposits with FRHEE=E AEHER (732,425)
Maturity Period over Three Months RZIghn
Payment for Capital Expenditure =\ AR (407,093)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEEFFMIE 411
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRRE (1,110,954)
Payment for Investment in a Subsidary RERHEAE] (100,000)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREMEMIE 817,773
Dividend Received [=E8::25) 7,099
Interest Received EUFIE 181,375
Loans Granted to Staff BB EIR (34,350)
Loans Repaid by Staff BEHEEN 31,547

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BREEEFRERA R ERE (1,346,617)



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEREPXKR
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

RETRER (@)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

HE_T-tFRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA#E#FT5lR)

Note 2016
FfsE
Financing Activities Bl RS
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds EEEERESZRY (93,674)
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EETHRERITEM 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan (EETIRIPER (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEBETRREZEITEM (4,000)
to Staff
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities PRSI FRER R ERE (98,948)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash RERRTSEYZBEM/(ED) (322,191)
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERFEEEY - FNER 726,149
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERFEEEY - FR&H% 19 393,958

The notes set out on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
HHRE—THNEENTEtEZMFARMFRTZ G
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEREPXKR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TR B RE

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College,
S. H. Ho College, C. W. Chu College, Wu Yee Sun
College, and Lee Woo Sing College (collectively
“the University”), the Trustees of the four separately
established constituent Colleges, namely The
Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of
New Asia College, The Trustees of United College
and The Trustees of Shaw College, and CUHK
Health Limited and CUHK Medical Centre Limited
(collectively “the Group”). The Trustees of these
constituent Colleges were incorporated under
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance
(“the Ordinance”). As these constituent Colleges
function to complement the University in the
provision of a balanced, holistic education which
also embodies different intellectual and cultural
traditions, management of the University is of
the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those of
the University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of the
four separately established constituent Colleges.
The aggregate surplus for the year ended 30 June
2017 of the Trustees of these four separately
established constituent Colleges amounted to
$116 million (2016: deficit of $33 million) and their
aggregate net assets at the end of the reporting
period amounted to $1,620 million (2016: $1,504
million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries, except for CUHK Health
Limited and CUHK Medical Centre Limited which
have been consolidated in the Group’s financial
statements for 2017, as management is of the
opinion that their aggregate net assets and net
surplus/deficit, which would have constituted
1.7% (2016: 2.1%) and 0.8% (2016: 2.3%) of the
respective consolidated totals, are insignificant.

FREMBRREETEPINXAE - EPCEaRHE
Efx - EEER - WXER - MERSER - NBEER
(B8 "TXRE, ) HEBIREER  REBRRE
2 FRERKRED  BEERRESNERERRK
B FEPNABBERERASINEEPIAZE
BhOERLSNMBERR(GE "ABEE, ) - X
EERREGHIRBEEEPIXABIRGIRLIL - HRK
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BETABREEH  RAABREEREBRAME
ERRESNEIL - ERTEREAS—HNER
HEAEER - ARTE (FEUHBREEN) B+H1F
(REMBERR) @ MEEUBHRITEET HES
IREERNEERRNEENAR - IEABIMKE
ERZAIFERRL—R—TREEBRT (5T—AF:
BiE=T=08n) MPFEENS T AE=TET (=
F—REF  THARTNEER) °

RTEBPIXAZBEBREARASINEEPXAEES
PILBERASIRZF—LtFRESEF RSB RER
b NREMBRRLATESHMMEB LS M
BX - AREEERRHEMHBEASCFEERFR
BRIBERADNGABEENE D —ME(EF—K
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2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with
the Statement of Recommended Practice
(“SORP”) for institutions funded by the
University Grants Committee (‘UGC”) in Hong
Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
University. None of these developments are
relevant to the Group’s and the University’s
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 33).
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, and
cash flows and any unrealised surplus arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised deficit resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2.9), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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2.4 Fixed Assets

Iltems of Fixed Assets, other than Construction
In Progress and Art Collection, are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2.9).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.9). The residual value of Art
Collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection is not
depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives or economic lives, whichever
is shorter, as follows:
Interest in Leasehold Land
held for Own Use under
Operating Leases

Over the remaining
lease term

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture 3 -10 years

and Fittings

Shorter of useful
life and duration of
project

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of a fixed asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the fixed asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Assets acquired for
Research Projects
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2.6

Investment Properties

Investment Properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.6) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
currently undetermined future use.

Investment Properties are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2.9).
Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from Investment Properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.13(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.4.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

(i) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets are
included in the Statement of Financial Position
according to their nature and depreciated in
accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in note 2.4. Income arising from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with the
income recognition policies, as set out in note
2.13(v).
(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
University have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are initially recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the
Statement of Financial Position at amortised
cost less impairment losses (see note 2.9).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(i) Investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.9).

(iv) Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments are initially recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(v) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve, except for
impairment losses (see note 2.9) and, in the
case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in investment revaluation reserve is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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2.8

29

(vi)Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2.9), except where the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:
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For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in investment
revaluation reserve.
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(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that Fixed Assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. When an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independently of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the asset or
assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

2.10 Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received/receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group or the University and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as follows:

(iy Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grants Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to the General and Development Reserve
Fund in the reporting period in accordance
with prevailing UGC guidelines.
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(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital Funds
and are recognised as income over the useful
lives of the related assets when the assets
are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes
are recognised as income to the extent of
the related expenditure incurred during the
reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest Income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental Income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions in cash and cash
equivalents or other investment instruments for
general purpose are recognised as income at
fair values when it is probable that they will be
received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations and Benefactions for specific
purposes designated by the donors are initially
recognised as deferred income when received,
and then as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the year.
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(vii) Other Service Income

Other Service Income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.14 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment of
not less than two years. The gratuity, together
with the total amount of the University’s
contributions to a particular retirement scheme,
will add up to 10% or 15% of the appointee’s
basic salary drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the Group or the University,
the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.
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Service cost and net interest expenses/
(income) on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognised in the line item of staff
cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Current service cost
is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a scheme are changed
or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expenses/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s or the University’s
obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in restricted funds.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group or the University can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.16 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.17 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(Vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2.18 Taxation 2.18 TR

The University is exempted from payment of Hong SR AKEESBHMISIEHSESSIFETT » TIEaR
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland REBFER
Revenue Ordinance.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
The Group
R
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter-
Activities IR ETEIEE Segment
Self-Financed Research Other Tr?n_saCtllon
Elimination

Programmes  Activities  Activities

HEDER nELERE WREH HttEs 2WMEZR

EEN S
Revenue KA
Government Subventions BATER 4,532,455 3,077 258,300 40,783 -
Tuition, Programmes and BE . FEM 982,867 1,037,965 - 86 (236)
Other Fees Hth &
Interest and Net Investment  FIE &IREiE 157,489 66,277 3,627 711,583 -
Income ek
Donations and Benefactions 3888 85K - 6,851 82,855 651,209 -
Ancillary Services Income  ERBIARFEUIA 16,867 1,069 - 282,864 (28)
Other Income E AU A 17,944 52,076 129,196 350,109 (37)
5,707,622 1,167,315 473,978 2,036,634 (301)
Expenditure ZH

Learning and Research Bt &R
Instruction and Research HEBRARE 3,694,113 1,000,725 477,372 512,715 (35)

Library GES: 225,135 - - 6,687 ;

Central Computing Facilites 1 REEREH 132,086 - - 32,775 -

Other Academic Services EL B ARFS 128,894 20,737 - 28,214 -

Institutional Support KEAGHENER 75

Management and General EEX—MREE 309,128 - - 103,186 -

Premises and Related BFENEEZE 657,910 - - 86,871 -
Expenses

Student and Generall BER—MBHEET 171,880 - - 310,288  (266)
Education Services E=p

Other Activities HithsEg 11,946 - - 23,232 -

5,331,092 1,021,462 477,372 1,103,968 (301)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year ZNEEEREH/(E518) 376,530 145,853  (3,394) 932,666 -




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(URBETFTIR)

The University

KE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter-
Activities FFRESERES Segment
Self-Financed Research Other Tr?nlsaCt.ion
Programmes Activities  Activities Elimination
HWEZER BERERE WEES HiEs 2EELR
EEN SR
Revenue KA
Government Subventions  BUFERN 4,532,455 3,077 258,300 40,783 -
Tuition, Programmes and B . FEM 982,867 1,034,656 - - -
Other Fees Hth &
Interest and Net Investment FIE &R EE 157,489 66,277 3,627 619,909 -
Income et
Donations and Benefactions  1BEE & IBM - 232 82,855 613,373 -
Ancillary Services Income  ERBIARFEUIA 16,867 1,069 - 276,486 -
Other Income HAUA 17,944 52,037 129,196 345,738 -
5,707,622 1,157,348 473,978 1,896,289 -
Expenditure * it
Learning and Research Bii &A%
Instruction and Research BENHAE 3,694,113 1,000,725 477,372 510,625 -
Library SES:] 225,135 - - 6,687 -
Central Computing Facilites 1 REEREH 132,086 - - 32,775 -
Other Academic Services  EfhZE2ARTS 128,894 6,614 - 12,655 -
Institutional Support KERGHENER 75
Management and General EEN—AMREIE 309,128 - - 78,977 -
Premises and Related BFENEEZE 657,910 - - 76,607 -
Expenses
Student and General BEL—EHE 171,880 - - 259,878 -
Education Services E7
Other Activities HEFE 11,946 - - 17,106 -
5,331,092 1,007,339 477,372 995,310 -
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year ZNSFER8H/(F516) 376,530 150,009  (3,394) 900,979 -
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Note: (1) Inter-segment transactions mainly included overhead recovered from self-financed programmes,
externally-funded activities and costs recovered for the services provided among UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities.

(2) These disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the SORP for the
UGC-funded Institutions. The reported segments are defined by source of funding. The disclosures
are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. The SORP

is intended to complement HKFRSs, covering areas which are unique to the UGC-funded institutions.

fsE: (1) DEEZREEESREBEZER: @ INIENNESI N ESEMRIFNE S E A iR AARFSUR
@E&]Fﬁqgﬁﬁﬁ °
(2) BEAPMBEZHEBNRAESENRREZENNELR - RESTHETKREFELE - KENBNLFZE
ATEEFEEBMEREENESF "REI, WER - BRENSEHRSEBMBERSEL RS
BESEMRREGHMT -

Cost allocation principles for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities

The principles for cost allocation and overhead recovery of the University are:

* No cross subsidisation between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities;

+ All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and
borne by the activities;

+ All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which
cannot be separately identified to specific activities, are allocated to segments as overhead recovery
according to the University’s internal policy.

PETEMLIENETEMES R AL ERE

AERAZEAEEERAREIMNRRINT
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©  FREEARKEEINERRHEZEFEIZERE

© FETESFERERSEEDNEZEER - WPRENE - TEREBRY - IRBABANBERIEAES
SER

The University’s policy on overhead recovery

The self-financed programmes are subject to overhead charges ranging from 13% to 26% of the total
income of the programmes, of which are depending on whether the programmes are running on part-time
or full-time mode, and are held off-campus or on-campus.

For projects funded by UGC or The Research Grants Council (“RGC”), there is no overhead charge since
on-costs are already provided by UGC or RGC to the University to cover indirect costs. For other externally-
funded research and knowledge transfer grants, overhead is charged according to the University’s policy
on Research, Intellectual Property and Knowledge Transfer. The normal rate is charged at a range of
15% to 25% on direct costs. The charging percentage varies with reference to the operation mode of the
grants. No overhead shall be charged on donations or gifts.

ALER W E R B AR
HELEFRENEZRERNERFERAWNANBRZ =217 EERRFEEE BHISFRES - UER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FT5IR)

The Group and the University

REEERAE
2016
Subventions from UGC HE=EH
Block Grants ERwnns 3,780,672
Supplementary Grants IEEEEE 181,841
3,962,513
Earmarked Grants IEEREMHE
Research Grants EfEmE 218,296
Housing Benefits EEEN 18,847
Area of Excellence BN EE 18,537
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences ARF R R B B 5,630
Restructuring and Collaboration Fund SR NMRERBIE 2
One-off Special Equipment Grant —RBYFRIER BN E 6
Knowledge Transfer Activities HAEEH 12,810
Other Earmarked Grants HittisEFREMIE 14,903
Rates and Government Rent Refund RiEE N B AT e 68,876
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions,  EE#BEIEHEYGE - & - 181,119
Repairs and Improvements (AA&I) HAS M INE TR
Block Allocation
4,501,539
Grants from Government Agencies HRF ISR 296,450
4,797,989
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Matching Grants

[T 2 A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UEBTFTIR)

Matching Donations
Grants

MHEHE  BR

Matching Donations
Grants
Aot BN E PN

Balance - End of Year

FHER

The Group The University
AERERE RE
Balance - Beginning of Year FHFEE
Income (Note) YA (BffsE)
Grants/Donation BB
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl S &I E B
Expenditure ZH
Teaching and Research BEBNAE
Student Exchange Activities BERimaEn
Student Development BERE
Scholarships RBEF
Bursaries BEE
Capital Projects HEiEIER
Transfer from Capital Fund HEEEES
Balance - End of Year AL
The Group The University
REERE RE
2016 2016
Balance - Beginning of Year FHHEER 1,483,528 1,637,137 1,483,528 1,549,816
Income (Note) YA (BffsE)
Grants/Donation HEE AR - - - -
Interest and Net Investment NERIGET 821 (28,306) 821 (30,641
Income/(Loss) Wrah/(E518)
821  (28,306) 821  (30,641)
Expenditure ZH
Teaching and Research BENHARE 32,958 67,606 32,958 67,523
Student Exchange Activities BERmaE 5,080 4,617 5,080 4,518
Student Development BERE 28,446 7,111 28,446 5,740
Scholarships 128 5,911 22,181 5,911 19,682
Bursaries BhEE - 373 - 259
Capital Projects HiEEE - 55,476 - 55,476
72,395 157,364 72,395 153,198
Transfer from Capital Fund BEEERS 2,883 55,003 2,883 54,931

1,414,837

1,506,470 1,414,837

1,420,908



Note: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on
a dollar-for-dollar matching basis up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government
Grant for every $2 donation) for amounts beyond $60 million and limited to an overall total of $600 million
for each institute. There were no matching grants received during the year (2016: Nil).

izt FEEMENEA BIREFSANIABROEANEREE RIEES - T EARSEFDNER - KPEA
SEATETRSESRE—TH —THLR)HE - HBSBAL—THMTNLEESHThARRETE
B —TEATHEIE)HE - TSHERETARREEHNET - RAFEABERRABIL KR
B - (ZB—eF: Bi)

4.2 Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

5 LB AR sE B E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (ME#FT5lIR)

The Group and the University

KRB AE
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants Grants
EoEiHEENE BM EoEiHEENE B™M
2016
Balance - Beginning of Year S48} 4,975 716
Income YA
Grants/Donations fHBNEBR ) )
Interest and Net Investment  FIE&IREF 80 (6)
Income/(Loss) &8/ (B518)
80 (6)
Expenditure X
Programme Costs JHEMEX
Academic Related Programs ~ Eii#8RIER 230 -
Career Related Programs MEEREE 429 -
Cultural Related Programs X{biEEEER 318 -
Service Related Programs ARFSHERIEE 63 -
Instruction and Research BERRSE - 536
Establishment of endowment ~ FRITEEEESD - -
fund (Note 1) (MH5E 1)
1,040 536
Balance - End of Year (Note 2) #2485 (HizE 2) 4,015 174

Note: (1) The matched donation of HK$4.8 million was stipulated by the donor to manage as an endowment
fund which should remain intact in perpetuity and the annual payout received within the Scheme
period would be used under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students.

(2) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).

(3) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the matching and use of the
matching grants under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students as set
out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2016-17.

MizE: (1) BEONENTERZRHRREREREREEERABSES  BEAEBRETE - MtEHARBRENES

WARSE F24 AR ERTE -

(2) HACEETERITEREA (FEE23)

(3) REB—7N—tEEARBERE F B AMESERT S EIR(EIER P A # BN A BCH K E IR A
8l -
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4.3 Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)

S BRI RRIEEE G E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTHIR)
The Group and the University

44

REBEBELAE
The University excluding CUSCS* CUSCS*
RETBEEREEZSR HREEZER
2016 2016
Balance - Beginning of Year b= ) Feq:r 10,597 -
Income A
Grants (refunded)/received (GRE])/EUEEN 7,051 4,217
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl| 8 3% & B INES 191 16
7,242 4,233
Expenditure %
Student Exchange Scholarships B4 nisEsy 1,611 585
1,611 585
Balance - End of Year (Note) SRR (MIEE) 16,228 " 3648

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under SSE
as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2016-17.
MizE: (1) AEREEEEEEWEA (MEE23) -
(2) REF—N—tEERBENE LBEIRINRRER SRR PRI E BRI A -

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students (“SSEBR”)
FLEB4R#E T—F-K, WERREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEEETFITHIR)

The Group and the University

REERELAE
The University excluding CUSCS* cuscs*
ARETOEEEEESEMR HREZEMR

2016 2016

Balance - Beginning of Year FLERR - -
Income A

Grants received EUER 7,050 738

Interest and Net Investment Income Il &2 &35 B IEs 32 1

7,082 739
Expenditure X

Student Exchange Scholarships BERRiREE 82 -

82 -

Balance - End of Year (Note) TFREER (MTEE) 7,000 739

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.

Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under
SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2016-17.
MizE: (1) #AEREEREEEREREA (EE23) -
(2) RES—N—LEEABENE LBLERT " —F—1  WEXREFTEIREREmR T RIEE R A
All -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#TFTT5IR)
The Group The University
REER RE
2016 2016
UGC-Funded Programmes HESHRE
Tuition Fees B 942,843 942,843
Programmes and Other Fees PR S E M 16,756 16,756
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes B EIRE
Tuition Fees BE 1,034,242 1,031,211
Programmes and Other Fees RN EMINE 9,680 9,672
2,003,521 2,000,482
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAZB¥ETFTTHIR) o
The Group The University
REEGE RE
2016 2016
Interest Income from Listed Securities @SR S 21,402 19,122
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities  IF LrasgZFl SUEE 48,127 48,098
Interest Income from Time Deposits TEHEFFE 129,149 118,298
Net Realised and Unrealised HittFEH Z BERAKR (195,930) (172,940)
Gain/(Loss) on Other Securities BN /(B518) 38
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange  BE£IRKREIRZIME (47,907) (36,653)
Gain/(Loss) from Time Deposits SOIREINES/(B518)
Dividends from Listed and THARIELETE 46,289 25,692
Unlisted Securities BB Es
Other Investment Expense HitigE X H (851) 851
279 766
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Note:

Bt 5E:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)

The Group The University
REBER RE

2016 2016
Capital Projects HEEER 1,314 712
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 1R SRR NBHERE 137,236 114,654
Research Activities HEEED 87,316 87,316
Development of Morningside College =~ ZERREER - -
Development of S. H. Ho College BREGER 637 637
Development of C. W. Chu College BRI ER 2,188 2,188
Development of Lee Woo Sing College ~ZRTEER 5,060 5,060
Development of Wu Yee Sun College ZRMERER 5,854 5,854
Development of Shenzhen Campus ZRFYIDR - -
Development of Teaching Hospital ZRAZER 12,149 12,149
General Academic Use —RBERAE 208,986 180,467
460,740 409,037

(1) Total donations of $28.7 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year

(2016: $18.9 million).

(2) Total donations of $100 million were received from The D.H. Chen Foundation in support of the development

of the CUHK Medical Centre Limited for the year (2016: Nil).

(1) AFEREREESZEREEAEERECREXTFNEETER CEF—AFE: —FN\EATER) -

(2) FEEAREHESSRRTAEI/IZFRPIK

3] S EX
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UREEFTIR)

The Group The University

KEREEEE KE
2016 2016
Resident Halls BiEE 146,158 145,486
Rental Income HEWA 63,752 58,098
Catering and Hospitality Services RER R EER 10,514 10,528
University Press REH AR 9,318 9,318
Rental Contribution from Staff R EEEHMR 11,808 11,808
Retail Store Sales TEEHHE 1,923 1,928
Others Hith 33,448 33,448
276,921 270,614

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAFE#TFITHImR)

The Group The University

REREEED A2
2016 2016
Service Income BRFEUTA 208,402 208,137
Contract Research HEras 111,332 110,752
Miscellaneous Hih 178,519 173,977

498,253

492,866
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TR

The Group
REER
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses
ST ERmM
MtEFl RERR e
Learning and Research BiiRfR
Instruction and Research HEBNRRE 4,034,783 1,435,506 214,601
Library SES 99,344 125,562 6,916
Central Computing Facilities th RERKERHE 94,895 51,019 18,947
Other Academic Services H{th 2B AR TS 128,812 47,139 1,894
4,357,834 1,659,226 242,358
Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AE3EHBNARFE(FI5E10.1)
Management and General EBN—HREIE 268,600 126,875 16,839
Premises and Related Expenses  1#FRBREALE 190,551 321,405 232,825
Student and General Education BN —BBEEE 210,075 263,155 8,672
Services
Other Activities HAhEEF5 20,969 13,655 554
690,195 725,090 258,890
Total Expenditure - 2017 —E-tFETH 5,048,029 2,384,316 501,248
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2016
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT &
prgtil RS e 4
Learning and Research BiiRHE
Instruction and Research BB MRS 3,764,873 1,359,487 169,116 5,293,476
Library SES: 95,583 133,578 5,534 234,695
Central Computing Facilities ch R EEREES 90,277 54,059 17,489 161,825
Other Academic Services HLAth BB RS 123,821 33,217 1,860 158,898
4,074,554 1,580,341 193,999 5,848,894
Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AE3#HBIARTS(FI5E10.1)
Management and General EHEN—RGEIR 241,610 60,347 16,743 318,700
Premises and Related Expenses  1#EFRERALE 170,934 297,692 235202 703,828
Student and General Education BER—BBESE 209,054 251,044 7,712 467,810
Services
Other Activities HAhEEFE 22,604 16,912 632 40,148
644,202 625995 260,289 1,530,486
Total Expenditure - 2016 —E-RFETH 4,718,756 2,206,336 454,288 7,379,380




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAB#EFIT5Im)
The University
KE
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses
ST
KAz RERER e
Learning and Research Bii &A%
Instruction and Research HEBNHAE 4,034,773 1,433,471 214,591
Library SES: 99,344 125,562 6,916
Central Computing Facilities th REREET 94,895 51,019 18,947
Other Academic Services H{h# B ARTS 116,363 30,033 1,767
4,345,375 1,640,085 242,221
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  XE3EERIARTS(Fi5E10.1)
Management and General ERN—AREIE 245,523 125,931 16,651
Premises and Related Expenses BFEEERH 189,823 314,335 230,359
Student and General Education BE N —RBEEE 193,354 229,975 8,429
Services
Other Activities HithEE55 20,836 7,703 513
649,536 677,944 255,952
Total Expenditure - 2017 —E-tFaE 4,994,911 2,318,029 498,173
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2016
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT &
KAEF KRR e L]
Learning and Research BiiRfR%
Instruction and Research BB HE 3,764,818 1,356,532 169,112 5,290,462
Library EEE 95,583 133,578 5,534 234,695
Central Computing Facilities th RERER 90,277 54,059 17,489 161,825
Other Academic Services H{th#ZBARTS 111,704 31,086 1,832 144,622
4,062,382 1,575,255 193,967 5,831,604
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  XE3EHEhBR#E(Mi5E10.1)
Management and General EEN—MRSIR 241,610 60,301 16,545 318,456
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEHEZH 170,129 294,003 232,699 696,831
Student and General Education BER—BAEEE 193,357 225,638 7,566 426,561
Services
Other Activities HAhsEFE 22,548 12,206 597 35,351
627,644 592,148 257,407 1,477,199
Total Expenditure - 2016 —E-RFALH

4,690,026 2,167,403

451,374

7,308,803
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10.1 Analysis of Institutional Support - Operating Expenses AE#HRIRFSEERIL SR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

The Group The University
REER RE
2016 2016
Management and General BER—HEEIE
General Insurance —HRRIEE R 8,774 8,774
Auditor's Remuneration, Legal “EETME  EER 1,422 1,377
and Other Professional Fees HEEHAER
Other Operating Expenses Hth/Z&pz 50,151 50,150
60,347 60,301
Premises and Related Expenses BFEEERE
Repair and Maintenance HIERRE 117,877 115,638
Utilities KEMERE 102,419 102,419
Government Rent and Rates =AM A AR 69,579 69,310
Security, Environment and Safety RE  RIENTEEE 5,149 4,485
Services
Property Insurance YR EF 2,163 2,151
Other Operating Expenses Hith & &p% 505 -
297,692 294,003
Student and General Education BER—BBEEH
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries #2283 « RENENBEE 145,344 121,054
Resident Halls Expenses BEESMR 41,622 40,805
Student Exchange Programme BaRRETEl 14,468 14,433
Careers, Counseling Services and B2 - BB RIS K24 28,968 40,178
Student Activities ERINES
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities ~ Z34/ERIMNEEN 6,027 -
Alumni Affairs KRR AR EETE 3,390 3,386
Sports and Other Facilities e M HE R 1,905 1,898
Student Financial Aids BB &R 670 -
Student and Staff Health Services 234 K% S (R ERARFS 3,512 3,512
Other Operating Expenses Hth/QEpz 5,138 372
251,044 225,638
Other Activities HAthE#E
University Press AEBH AR 8,285 8,287
Catering Services ERARTE 3,445 3,445
Souvenir Counter Eman 291 345
Miscellaneous HIFZTH 4,891 129
16,912 12,206

625,995

592,148

Note: $5,490,796 (2016: $4,919,036) was spent on the . CARE Programme which was included in the Student

and General Education Services.

MizE: REHEEIMXANAENTABRSEEATAR(ES—REF | BEAT—B8ATE=17m)
EEREEEEN—MRBEEHA -



10.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SN E T

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the years ended
30 June 2017 and 2016, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:
SERENEFERSENEMZEHFEBBE—BN\TBRTNETABUSERIINT :

The Group and the University

REEER A

2016

s s

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 99
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 66
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 48
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 29
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 20
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 11
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 15
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 18
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 1
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 3
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 3
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 5
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 11
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 1
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 1
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 2
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 12
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 7
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 6
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 1
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 3
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 2
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 1

5,250,001 - 5,400,000
5,400,001 - 5,550,000
5,550,001 - 5,700,000
5,700,001 - 5,850,000
5,850,001 - 6,000,000
6,000,001 - 6,150,000
6,150,001 - 6,300,000
Total “REl

w
o))
(o T T T T |

Included in the total figure above are 114 clinical staff members (2016: 110).
i FEERAREEASH 114N (TT—RE 1 110A) °

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.

M EEEE  BRUNEHR - BERT - HERM  WiRiERE R0 -

ol
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11.1 The Group KEREE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Restricted Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement
of Changes in Funds respectively.

AREBRENABNERESASEME D FH R FELGEHRNIIR - SREERESESSBRNESEIRPIIT -

(i) As at 30 June 2017, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $716 million (2016:
$656 million) and the operating reserves of $3,529 million (2016: $2,920 million) for self-financed activities,
ancillary services and privately funded projects. The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land
donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean
Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was
outside the precincts of the University and, since 1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts
and subject to the same terms and conditions on which the land gift was then held.

#E"T—tFA=1H HtEEZEEREMRESLE T EEBR CT—AE : AEATHEER) &
KEBEEE - XBHHRBLAMAEHEENEERB=TAR=TINEER (ZF—RF : Z+AE=TFTE
7T) - REREEREREMIEINERAR—NETFRLZDoctors StewartKJulia KunkleMEEEAR REZ MR
Rl - EHREERFRN LR AREE - B—AtAFE  REFEDPXAZRANZRREFBTAERS
BZEFERIDFRRENERGERURERGREG G - REREERQED -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $742 million (2016: $461 million) as disclosed in Note 7.

REEEEN)  BIRESSAESNHPTHEREEREAEREE tRETEET (ST —RF [N
F—EEBT) RESE - BELERITEFTIRMETA -

11.2 The University K&

(i) As at 30 June 2017, the balance of Others includes the operating reserves of $1,483 million (2016: $1,539
million) for self-financed activities and ancillary services.

#E"FT—tFNA=TH HthE ST EZCREEEILASZHBRBENEERBRXTOENT=EERT (=
T—AE: tAR=TIhEER) °

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $461 million (2016: $409 million) as disclosed in Note 7.

REEEEN  BIRESSRAESNHEHPHPEEEBAERRRZOEAT—EET (CF—AF: BIETH
BETT) FREE © BELBRZDTEFIRMETA -



Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
non-deferred funds.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of new
colleges. In addition, the Funds also comprise the
unspent balance of sponsorship grants and service
income.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others
Others comprise reserves generated from self-

financed programmes, ancillary services, scholarships
and bursaries and miscellaneous activities.

BEEE®

EEEESEHFEENESRENEEEENIREF

H-

BERES

BETEEEABWEMNBENE  EEREEEEER
EERETY  BEFENGEEHBAERERS -

HithSHEE

HithEAEEBIEARE AR RS RABEARIE - It
5 - BEETNE S EBISRRAVEREE M ARF LS o

BRIEEESE

ERREEEEERMAMBERNERTRE -

MREEEE

MRIEEEEERABAERENTEINES - Hoh
MEEBEFERNTHRERA - AERERTAA
s o

Hith

HttSAEEBENBEERERE - BHRT - 122
£ - WRENFIEESNRBRER -
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The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s UGC Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement of
Changes in Funds respectively.

ARERENABNRESESAZERE DBV LAARGERNER - SRERGESEFIRLESEFRDIIT -

(1) The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent funds carried over from
one funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and
new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20%
of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for
that funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—MRNERERESEREREARGERR=ZF)ADAMITEES—EREREABREEINERNES - —
R EREHRESHRCERUABEZECEEHHME(BHRARZEEHMERINNEAIZC=TRR - M
BHRENROREEABHEENESE -

(2) $421 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as permanent endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. Only investment income from these permanent endowments will be used to fund these
programmes.

HEGRHHNEPHNOE-TEERCREBELEENESE - UMRHRIEMNERIER - SEEHHIRHE
fi - BRI E L EATEIEE) - MZFRENEESE - ROURERESBRINNRER® T -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAE#FT5IR)
The University

RE

2016

Unlisted Shares, at cost JEETRARIR © A 210,257

As explained in Note 1, except for CUHK Health Limited and CUHK Medical Centre Limited which have
been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements in 2017, the results of all subsidiaries have not been
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements:-

WFIEE 1FRED - BRT BB P X ABBEARATINBEPIXABEENLEARASEINR-F—tFRES ISR
IR - RBERZMBRIRILIIHES U THME L SR MR-

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities

incorporation EREiEELstLE
and operation

srmeksz oY the University by a subsidiary

NE)RTE meEhIh BAERE HWBARNE XEFRH
The Chinese University of  Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation & FMisE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
EBTXABESE &E - HE  RERSMH AR
BRAT] SENHE
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &i& and investment holding
MEBBEARFABRAE] * RIS I EER
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
E8ERAE] 't charitable and educational in
nature
Rt ZERHE M ERIRE
HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands REER
REBELES
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited &t Rt B R EARARTS
BB E AR
BIRAE]
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
thARhEERIZHERAS B Hong Kong
EEBREPE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited &# MisE recognised biotechnology
EREMRIRMAERR industry in Hong Kong
ABRAE EEERREERZ TNEYRIR
Iz
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services and
SRIBIZEBRATE &E manufacture products related to

biotechnology
LR B YA B AR B Y AR 7S A
mBGE
55



56

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held
incorporation RSt s

and operation

Principal activities

ks by the University by a subsidiary
NE)EE FEd—k BAARZHE HWBASEE IEXRH

BXRHAERGEYINBRAE] * The People’s 100%
Republic
of China

hEAR
$HAE

Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note
Limited * &is MisE

The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note
Hong Kong (Shenzhen) &8 i
Foundation Limited

BEPIXARB(RINEESE
BRAE

CUHK Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong 100%
BEPXARBEZN BB
BRAE]

CUHK Health Limited Hong Kong 100%
ERPNAEEEFRATE &E

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.

* WASIRE S LIFREBESEAIEHBAEE -
Note: This is a company limited by guarantee without share capital.
MizE: ASIR—MIERBERASE - WEEEMES -

To carry out research, technology
transfer and related technical services
on advanced technology, provide
consulting service on international
technology development, and manage
owned properties

= #r i g MO R 8%~ EB4b A 4B BR B AR
% BERRRESFREN  BEYEE
SHEE

To organise activities and research
regarding diabetes on a non-profit
making basis

DAZE £ R 72 2K 4B 485 B8 52 78 PR 975 Y S5 &N
VST

To sponsor, develop, promote and
encourage public participation in
public services

& 2R - REABRIMEATRSH
NHEF

To provide high quality private
healthcare services to support
sustainable development of medical
and health services in Hong Kong, to
strengthen the training of healthcare
professionals and facilitate application
of research results and clinical service
innovations through the operation of a
private teaching hospital
EETEPIABERUEETES
RN HERRE - BIIEXEE
AENHEENRERAAET A

To develop and manage medical
centres to provide high-quality
healthcare services and support
for teaching, research, and clinical
activities undertaken by the Faculty
of Medicine of CUHK in furtherance
of the educational objective and
aspiration of CUHK
ZREBEPOAREBERRR -
WE—SHEBEEDIXABRESZ RN
B2 > HANLHEHMERETE - UEE
BEPXRBIEARFKTEHEZR



The Group’s and the University’s investment
properties were originated from building gifts
and stated at zero cost in the Group’s and the
University’s Statements of Financial Position
respectively. For disclosure purpose, the Group’s
and the University’s investment properties were
revalued as at 30 June 2017 by independent firms
of surveyors, DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited for
Hong Kong commercial investment properties and
CBRE Limited for Hong Kong residential investment
properties, both have appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties.

Pursuant to the surveyors’ valuations, the
Group’s and the University’s recurring fair value
measurements categorised into Level 3 for the
Hong Kong commercial investment properties at
the end of the reporting period were approximately
$24.5 million (2016: $24.0 million). The Group’s and
the University’s recurring fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3 for Hong Kong residential
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period were approximately $175.3 million and
nil respectively (2016: $147.0 million and nil
respectively).

Such fair value measurement of the Group’s and the
University’s investment properties fall under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, as it uses
significant unobservable inputs. The valuation meth-
odology for 2017 remains the same as prior year.

ABRELASHRENTREEYRIBE  EMU
TREBANTAZRERARERBRAR - BRIEK
BER KBERERABNRENER=-FT—
tFEXA=+THARBBIASERBGELE
DTZEBRITIRUNREBENHRIREMFMCBRE
Limited RUREBENEEREYWREFEHMGE -

RBRIGTEINEE - RARBEFEDEE=FR
KARBEELRABHNREENEBRIRENRNF
BARBERERTYHFRLERINBS =TT
BA+TER (ZF—A%F : ZTHEER) - BRAofk
BEMEIEFE=ZFR/IABEELABNURE
ANEERENENSELABENERTMEE
ERERINH/—RBLtTRAE=TERLZTT (
ZFREF NS -ERTEtEERRAER)

REESEMBERES 135 "AREEHEL A
REN=ZFELABESFE RARAEAETRE
g KRBERERABNREVREE=ZFRM
B ZF-—tFENMGEREZELFEMER -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#EYTFT5lR)

The Group
REERE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note PfizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress &&fis ~ HE iy Total
tith BEE TEEIR PSEL:] I m iz
Cost |57
At 1 July 2016 TB—RE
tHA—R#&e
Additions 10
Disposals HE
At 30 June 2017 —F—tF
ANB=1TH#ER
Accumulated Depreciation R
At 1 July 2016 —E—NE
tHA—R#&
Charge for the Year e
Written Back on Disposal HER D
At 30 June 2017 “E—tF
ANB=1TB#8R
Net Book Value at —Z—-tFXA=1+H
30 June 2017 IREFE
Cost R
At 1 July 2015 —E—RF 336,848 7,349,499 11,235 3,315,410 21,535 11,034,527
tHA—B#8R
Additions by | - 36,481 10,392 360,269 610 407,752
Capitalisation adjustment ~ BEA{LEEE - ©2) - - - (92)
Disposals HE - - - (120,719) - (120,719)
At 30 June 2016 v
~E=+Dmes 336,848 7,385888 21,627 3,554,960 22,145 11,321,468
Accumulated Depreciation R
At 1 July 2015 —E—RF 89,428 2,204,475 - 2,698,146 - 4,992,049
tH—R#&
Charge for the Year ?ﬁ%gﬁ 7,732 184,882 - 261 ,674 - 454,288
Written Back on Disposal &0 - - - (120,210) - (120,210)
At 30 June 2016 TB—RE
~E=+R4%8s 97,160 2,389,357 - 2,839,610 - 5,326,127
Net Book Value at —E-REFXA=1H
30 June 2016 EESE 230,688 4,996,531 21,627 715350 22,145 5,995,341
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by

the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

MisE - THMEIEEEEER TE AT -

IATRAFIR -

N

FREERSELIMEERENERE - ARFAMBEREARHTFARMRLERERE AN LB PR - It



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IAE#FT5IR)

The University
XE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note MizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress &%fi ~ 8 T Total
tih BE mETRE PNES:] T B
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2016 “E—RE
tHA—B#%e

Additions #Em
Transfers 2704
Disposals HE
At 30 June 2017 —F—tF

ANA=tTB&R

Accumulated Depreciation BEifEE

At 1 July 2016 TE—RE
tH—B#&e
Charge for the Year hEsE
Written Back on Disposal i E&E#%
At 30 June 2017 —T—tF
ANB=1B#8k
Net Book Value at —F—tFXA=1+H
30 June 2017 IR BE
Cost |57 3
At 1 July 2015 “FZ—hiF 336,848 7,271,128 11,235 3,304,459 19,360 10,943,030
+tB—RB#&e%
Additions 1 - 36,481 10,392 359,610 610 407,093
Transfers 141 - - - - - -
Disposals HeE - - - (120,501) - (120,501)
At 30 June 2016 BT

ANB=tH#&E 336,848 7,307,609 21,627 3,543,568 19,970 11,229,622

Accumulated Depreciation RT&HE

At 1 July 2015 “E—hF 89,428 2,197,414 - 2,689,747 - 4,976,589
+tA—B#&8
Charge for the Year e 7732 183,035 - 260,607 - 451,374
Written Back on Disposal HEREIER - - - (119,992) - (119,992)
At 30 June 2016 TE—RE
NB=1B#&ER 97,160 2,380,449 - 2,830,362 - 5,307,971
Net Book Value at —E-X&EXA=1H
30 June 2016 IR FE 239,688 4,927,160 21,627 713,206 19,970 5,921,651

Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.
- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

st - TithEiEEERSETHERLH -
- FEERBRIMLERNESEE - AU BEEREHFAS MR HREREC AN Lt EhARRY - I
AR AT
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)
16.1 Non-Current Investments JEFRENIEE

The Group The University
PAY=E4: KE
2016 2016
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, FEEIHRESES
at Amortised Cost RIS SHR S
Unlisted JELH 662,366 661,360
Listed gyl
Hong Kong &% 764,851 690,266
Overseas =sh 725,009 725,009
2,152,226 2,076,635
Available-for-sale Securities ol ERES
Unlisted Equity Securities, JELHRAES
at Cost RS 1,001 1,001
Less: Provision for Impairment iR - R E S 1,000 1,000
1 1
Equity Securities Listed in Hong Kong, BB LHRAES
at Fair Value BRAREE 209,782 -
Unit Trusts Listed in Hong Kong, HE LHEMET
at Fair Value B mAorEE 3,303 -
213,086 1
Limited Partnership Investments, [REES&InE -
at Fair Value (Note 1) BAREE (FiEE1) 1,420,503 1,420,503
Alternative Investments, BEERE -
at Fair Value (Note 2) BAREE (M) 364,271 364,271
Investments in Unconsolidated JEEEMBAS]
Subsidiaries, at Cost B8RS o RS 210,257 -
Non-Current Investments IEREIRE

4,360,343

3,861,410



Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns and
to achieve capital appreciation and invests in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships
across a broad range of marketable and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately
held securities and obligations. All applicable lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or
before 31 December 2011. The University may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the
General Partner of the partnership written advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as a limited partner of two limited partnerships set up
by the same General Partner. These limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective investment
opportunities formerly held by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced to sell in
the market at substantial discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity, distressed
credit, real estate, natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon request from the
General Partner. The University’s original commitments are about 4% and 1.8% of the respective total
commitments of these two limited partnerships, which approximate US$14.9 million and US$2.25 million
respectively. As at 30 June 2017, the University has paid US$11.8 million and US$2.0 million to these two
limited partnerships (2016: US$11.6 million and US$1.9 million).

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment
consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership. The University intends to hold these alternative investments for long-term purposes.

MizE: (1) RBERRESBASMHRARER=ERESBEEZHULABEIIR - ABFERPHIBLUFIRIEIRE -
REENRESHIRERTSTAFLARE - BRERNERRENAMRZREZEENOH - WENERIEE -
EHREREEEREES  EHEERFAEUSEBERENGRIRENSEEES  HPTEELHEERT
ABENESLER - MERESHEENREEEHER="F——F+=A=+—HER - KEILURLE—F
NEEBNMSBARNERIRFPHIXNZETNES -

ABNRBRZFFAFEAR—F—FE_ARENMEARSSRIER - EMERTSSHEBNU LERNE
FERECHRENEHE—EEBARE - EMERESHREIERENRARSREBENHMRES
JBH - BERESBERSHRTCHNRESBAMNEERTSBEES AU LIZRINRESBIER - BERES
BERRESELEKRE - BEEEER BHE - RABERS - RAEZRBENEREBARREZT - XER
HFAENREER S AMESHEEERNEEFSNERZARERLZ—/\ » 2B —THEATERTR
TESTRBER - #BETFT—tFAA=TH ABRIRET T -BN\tBERATEERTREMER
BERER CF—AEF  —FTEBEANTERRA—8htEERT) -

(2) ZERER—MXENREREASIRTHRER - QFHIES WEREREEENRESBIRES - KE5
BEIRMBERERENRE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16.2 Current Investments

(BT TR

The Group The University
REEGE KE
2016 2016
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, KEEFBERESES
at Amortised Cost R HHAR A
Amount Matured Within One Year —FAEHA
Unlisted LT 429,973 429,973
Listed a5
in Hong Kong TEE 488,312 478,994
Overseas Tzt 135,761 135,761
1,054,046 1,044,728
Trading Securities, at Fair Value OEERS ' RAREE
Debt Securities BEES
Unlisted LT 160,804 160,804
160,804 160,804
Equity Securities B ANGE
Listed £
in Hong Kong TaE 208,954 58,479
Overseas =gt 871,056 871,056
1,080,010 929,535
Unit Trusts BNERES
Unlisted LT 573,456 573,456
Listed ity ]
in Hong Kong e 388,631 333,936
Overseas izt 217,635 210,604
1,179,722 1,117,996
2,420,536 2,208,335
Current Investments mEmEE

Total Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :

FEERNHEEESERERERBARERE)

3,474,582

3,253,063

The Group The University
KEREERE KER
2016 2016
At amortised cost FRIBHM A 3,206,272 3,121,363
At fair value BRRREE

3,257,365

3,172,072



17.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets REFZHEIRESRAGEHNEE

The University operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) and a MPF-exempted ORSO
scheme that is subject to Hong Kong ORSO and MPF (Exemption) regulations. Since the establishment of
a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members. An actuarial
valuation of the Scheme is conducted every 3 years by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, the appointed actuary
to the Scheme. This defined benefit scheme exposes the University to actuarial risks such as interest rate
risk, salary risk and investment risk. The information about the TGS Scheme is summarised as below:

ABERB(AERBIRGIESRM—MERENDTE - B) " FEPKRB(R)ERBEIRGIESE BRI E
o ERTEIRRBRSSRNGTEIRGIEEM - th@BHIM LB BIER)RGIT - BHBEEHRRNRESRRNGE - B
WEEAEEAR"FITFTFTA—HMIIE  WRENRECTIBERZTME - ERENSTEINBEENE
ER=FHRXM(FR)BRASIET - BBRERE AEEMEERERR - FIIFIR - HEEMMRERR - ERE
FmEtBlmEREERT

The amount of net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:
MFIRRRAER T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAE#TF7T5IR)
The Group and the University

REBEERERER
2016
Present Value of Funded Obligations TESECRE (62,423)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIEEC L REE 68,604
Net Assets FEE 6,181

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The University is expected to pay $364,000 contribution to the Scheme for the
financial year 2017/18.

B L EESTRRRARTZEAAKED - BRRASHHRSERBEMCRARNBEMEN @ FIIKRESRE
HNERTS - FERRNTHSRIZEE - AtER LA EFEE —FA TRONEESRIIR - KEFRRR="F—
tEZF-N\HBFED - SEEERMA=TEBETTHHR -
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(ii)

(iii)

Scheme assets allocation:
FEIEEDS :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IX#&#&F7T5IR)
The Group and the University
REBERENAE
2016
Amount %

&8 B3kt
Bonds &% 21,953 32
Cash and Bank Deposits IRE MIRTTEMR 46,651 68

_68,604 __ 100

All bonds held under the TGS Scheme have credit ratings of Aa3 or higher.
FrEEEREN GBI T HAEZASIETASREIU LSRR -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations (“DBO”):

RENZSTRENED) :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAFE#ETFTTHIR)
The Group and the University
REERERAE

2016
Balance - Beginning of Year FH4EER 67,133
Benefits paid by the Scheme FHEIE R (8,480)
Current Service Cost IRBRFEMA 668
Interest Cost FIEMZA 723
Remeasurements recognised SHETERR 2,379

3,770
Balance - End of Year IR 62,423
Changes in fair value of scheme assets:
FEIREEZ AT EREE) :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THIR)

The Group and the University
REERERAE

2016
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 76,832
Contributions paid to the Scheme AIETEIEH Z R 612
Benefits paid by the Scheme HEIEfTFIE=S (8,480)
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest FHEIEEZEHR(FISMA (1,204)

income) 300

Interest Income FEUTA 844
Balance - End of Year FHRUEER _68.604



(v) (Income)/Expenses recognised in Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
and Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure are as follows:

EREEHNERAEENSZRAERZBENT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE#ETFITHIR)
The Group and the University
REERNAE
2016
Current service cost RERIEAE 668
Interest cost on DBO REMNBTEZNE A 723
Interest Income on Scheme Assets FrEIEEZFSBA (844)
Net Expenses recognised in the Statements of REHEWZREDRZFEZH 547
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions BEEAORREEIZFE 1
Effect of changes in financial assumptions EEMEESREe) o 1,716
Effect of experience adjustments b =)l R g = 662
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest  £H8I&&E Z B (FI 2UA 1,204
income) FR5H)
Total remeasurements recognised in REMEEINESTESR 3,583
Other Comprehensive Income WEIETE
Total defined benefit cost recognised 48 B e R ZS R ANTE SR 4,130

(vi) Changes in net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:

ERBRARAER CFEELEEE !

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#T7THIR)
The Group and the University
REEENAE
2016
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEEER 9,699
Contributions paid to the Scheme FHEISTHM 612
Net expenses on Scheme benefit recognised  REEUWRIRIER Z R EF (547)
in the Statements of Comprehensive Income B2
and Expenditure
Total remeasurements recognised in REfh 2 E SR Z (3,583)
Other Comprehensive Income WEIEE
Balance - End of Year FRERR T 6181

The net expense/income was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

BHMPMARZAMZRPNEE R —RBIHEANES T AR iR -
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(vii)  Significant actuarial assumptions:
FTERERS

2016
% p.a. % p.a.
Weighted-average assumptions to determine BUETENRSEZMET (% p-a) (% pa)
benefit obligations IR
Discount rate BRIRZE 0.70
Rate of salary increase FHEZIBRER 3.50
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FAUFEREF A2
defined benefit cost BEEER
Discount rate BHIRER 1.20
Rate of salary increase HEeZEER 3.00
(viii) Sensitivity analysis on DBO:
REMNSBEEZBRER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#TFrt5lR)
At 30 June 2017

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

BRIRER
R 5088 F
EIN502EF

FEZIBRR
R 5088 F
EIN502EF

BEIRR
A E02F
EIN5025F
FEiERR
A B08EF
Ems08sF

DBO will become
RIS—t&EXBA=1+H
REMNSSEHEE

Increase/(Decrease) by

1/ (’)

At 30 June 2016
DBO will become

Increase/(Decrease) by

RIS—REB=1+H 1,/ (R
REMSEEEEE
63,952 1,529 2.45%
60,081 (1442)  (2.31%)
62,133 (290)  (0.46%)
62,727 304  0.49%



(ix) Description of funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions:

FERRURNESLINE SBEREHA -

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule. At each funding valuation, the contribution rate
for the following three years is set. The last funding valuation was of 30 June 2017 and it was assessed at
that valuation that the University would contribute 10% of active members’ salary for the period from 1 July
2017 to 30 June 2020.

ZETEBE=FEME  RR=FNUREEBRESHERRTE - RENESHEAR=S—tFXA=1+A "
HEZEEPREABHA-S—tFtA—AE=T-BF AT AR EERENFEE D Z TR -

(x) Maturity profile of DBO:
REMNBFEZEIEE 27 :

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2017 is 4.4 years (2016: 4.8 years).
REB—tERA=1THRENBBEZIEFIIFRRIAE (TF—REF 48 F) -

Projected benefit payments (undiscounted) taking into account estimated future employee service and salary growth
based on Actuary’s aforementioned assumptions are:

RIE LB E R Z AR S TRERERELRRBRFHNFTIER) AU :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTHR)

Beyond 5 years but
Within 5 years within 10 years Beyond 10 years

5 £ 5 12810 R BE10E

Expected benefit payments FEERFIZS (TR

At 30 June 2017 R=T—t&F;xB=1+H
At 30 June 2016 R”EZ—xFEA=1H 40,082 14,912 12,870

17.2 Defined Contribution Scheme REMtFRFTE

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in Note 17.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is a MPF-exempted ORSO-
registered scheme. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes are as follows:

FREEE 17. 1 FRR R ENEE1E - AERRNTSHEMESRM T REFRNRERMETE - IEBPXABHEE
AEEEE (—AAER) (T -AAEEE )REFIMEAEEETE (T EBEEETE ) - — AR EIRIREISRIRETEIIR
BITFEEM - N 2EmfE SR E M IRETBIFTE LRI EE MR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEEETFITHIR)

The Group The University
REER KB
2016 2016
The 1995 Scheme — W NAEEE 163,319 162,561
The MPF Scheme HIEEETE 140,030 138,775

Total Contributions HBHR 303,349 301,336
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A#EH¥TFT5lR)

The Group The University
REBEERE RE
2016 2016
Loan to Subsidiary ERFHELTE 53,490 53,490
Other Loan Receivable Hith I E R 310 -
Accounts Receivable FEUHRTR 430,324 420,387
Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIBRE ~ RATRUIEN 165,027 160,056
Other Receivables EAthFEUER

Student Loans BAEOM 2,877 1,815
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Ft B L S)ERIR 3,097 3,097
Amount due from UGC BESERIR 60,855 60,855
715,980 699,700

Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i : FEYUIRFR A FE(T
Receivable and Prepayments FIEIETRENERR 150,461 150,277

Current portion of Accounts FEUTHRFR A TR FRIE
Receivable and Prepayments TRENER S 565,519 549,423

At 30 June 2017, Non-Current Accounts Receivable and Prepayments include an unsecured and interest-free
loan of $53.49 million (2016: $53.49 million) to a subsidiary repayable in January 2021, prepayment for fixed
assets and interest receivable from a government loan of $36.56 million (2016: Nil) and a prepayment for
investment of Nil (2016: $96.79 million).

REB—tHFARA=TAFRBRIRRARMRIEEE-—SEAT=00+hEx (CFT— % AF=B0E+IE
TEBRREENERTHRELS  ZERER=S_—F—AEE - BEEENTETRNBFERNELF S =
AREATARER (CT—RE : Tn) MRENRIRIEST (28 —XE  AFAELt+HIET) -

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repayable by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation.
If the borrower ceased to be a student of the University, all loans would then be repayable immediately.

BEERZENTFEREDPNABNTRLMERE HFINAMEBE - EHERSRFEENTBTEL/HZBER
FEME LREBEENE, PRESNERE - MANBLERISREEN  REEREREENHBAS B
&iE - MEEARER TR LEENSD - FREEBMELEEE -

The current accounts with Subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of repayment. Other
than part of Student Loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

B ASERRRDEIET - REMBREEENR - RECBEEMI - HBUIRRTEHR S E—FZ RO



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS R R FR MRS 5 1R

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

FEMIRRAIER B E ERIERBIRERIEREWA S - EEEARESTNT ¢
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FT5IR)

The Group The University
REERE KEB

2016 2016
Current FRE|HA 386,563 376,626
Less than 1 month past due PR—ER 34,025 34,025
1 to 3 months past due —EBE=ER 4,230 4,230
More than 3 months but within 12 =ERE+_fER 4,044 4,044

months past due

More than 12 months past due +ERAML 1,462 1,462
Amount past due EEIHA 43,761 43,761
Total FEYTIRFRAREE 430,324 420,387

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amounts are likely to be recoverable. No impairment
loss is provided for the year (2016: Nil).

AREEENABRHERHNEFTMER T REURE - Bt - FERFFEATFRRAES R (5F—RF  T) -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT rt5ImR)

The Group The University
REREEEE KE
2016 2016
Cash in Hand and with Banks and RE - RITREM 105,283 82,968
Other Financial Institutions BIFEHIETERR
Time Deposits EHATERR 9,739,076 9,046,558
Cash and Short-term Deposits in the  EIEIARRAMRS & 9,844,359 9,129,526
Statements of Financial Position ERITIEHATEFN
Less: Time Deposits with Original w: FAIEBE=fEA
Maturity over Three Months HIERATERR 9,302,693 8,735,568
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the RERERANIRE
Cash Flow Statements RIREEEY 541,666 393,958

Note: Time Deposits of $26 million (2016: $32.5 million) were pledged to secure two loans from the Government
(Note 22(b)).
Mzt —FAREET (CB—AF | =T B8R TER) ZEHRERCIEFFTERERERZIER(MEE22(b))
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Cash and Cash Equivalents included the following amounts denominated in foreign currencies:

REDRNEFEYNIRAEE - SETIIIMEEE:

(Expressed in thousands) (A F15155)
The Group The University
REERE RE
2016 2016
Australian Dollars AUD BT 280 280
Euro EUR ExTT 188 128
Pounds Sterling GBP REE 861 61
Renminbi RMB AEEE 79,216 1,025
Singapore Dollars SGD FrinigErT 517 -
United States Dollars usD =TT 268,622 3,723
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (ME#TF5T5lR)
The Group The University
REEE RE
2016 2016
Student Fees Received in Advance TR EE N E IR E 376,523 376,523
Accounts Payable FE(TIRTR 245,683 233,800
Other Creditors and Accruals HithFE TR FERTE 84,620 84,620
Deposits and Caution Money Received 1&E MIRAEE 125,087 125,087
Current Accounts with Colleges EMRERIRE - 202,923
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Pt 2 Sl 1E SRR 137,668 137,668
969,581 1,160,621
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i : FE{TIRFR A FER
Payable and Accruals ERIEREE R - -
Current portion of Accounts R IRFR R FERtE R
Payable and Accruals mEnEiin 969,581 1,160,621

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For

the remaining contractual maturities of the accounts payable, please refer to note 31.1(ii).

AREERLASSRBRESLEREAE - BABEESHE - BORRORBRSHORIN - FSREMEE31.100)

The current accounts with Colleges are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of repayment.

ERERIRMSRET > RELREEEEHR -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

The Group The University
RESEERE KEB
2016 2016
Staff Leave Entitlements EEFEAER 406,644 405,202
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service XA E R R EA 185,366 184,526
Payments RIS E
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions RIBEFIHEER 20,231 20,231
Salaries and Wages HERTE 59,740 59,490
671,981 669,449
Payable: FE(T -
Within 1 year R—FA 463,103 460,960
After 1 year R—Ei%& 208,878 208,489
671,981 669,449
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FT5IR) The Group The University
REREEE KES
2016 2016
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) Efa P S 2 BITE(HizEa)
Within One Year —FR 73,000 73,000
Secured Loans (Note b and c) BIRPER(FEEbAtc)
Within One Year —FR 6,274 6,274
Between One and Two Years —E_F 6,275 6,275
Between Two and Five Years “ERF 12,000 12,000
Over Five Years AFEME 8,000 8,000
32,549 32,549
Total Loans and Borrowings (EE L 105,549 105,549
Less: Repayable within One Year and w —EFEZREREZ 79,274 79,274
Included in Current Liabilities mEnafE
Amount included in Non-current Liabilites —F&EEZIFREEE 26,275 26,275

Notes HizE:

(a)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to

the bank’s consent.

BETFTHRSRTERERPR—F - WEXKRTAE - SFHTEY -

The secured loans of the University comprise two start-up loans from the Government to provide self-financing
full time accredited post-secondary programmes. The loans are interest-free, repayable in equal annual
instalments over 10 years starting from November 2008 and February 2014 respectively. One of the loans
with an outstanding amount of $2 million (2016: $4.5 million), and the other loan $24 million (2016: $28 million)

are secured by time deposits of the same amount.

AENHEFERESIEMERRAEENER - MRERRZ BFEaRB RS LRE - IMEEFIIRREE
M DRAR=FFTNF+—AR"FT-NFE_ARMBS+FTEE - Hp—ERSE"E8x CF—ARF  mEaa+
BUWER  RS—EERS-THEERT (ZF—RF | ZFN\EER)  ABHUERSENERFRERER -
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At 30 June 2017, the secured loan of the Group includes a loan from the Government for the development of the
private teaching hospital of $1,407 million (2016: Nil). The loan was secured by all the assets of CUHK Medical
Centre Limited (including property, plant and equipment with an aggregate value of $332 million) wheresoever
now or at any time hereafter belonging to CUHK Medical Centre Limited for managing and operating the hospital
and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to them. The loan bears no interest for the first five years.
Subsequently, it bears variable interest rate which is determined annually with reference to the Government'’s
fiscal reserves with the Exchange Fund established under the Exchange Fund Ordinance. The first repayment
will commence from 19 March 2023.

REZB—tFAA=1TH - AEBENFRITENREE-TEARAEHTHNES tEET(=T—RE  TR)NER

DAERRIZKABER - ZAERUTHRIRERNEREEPIXAEEEPOERASEEREEERIAEEE(
BEBEA=FE=T-EE TR « BEXRM) LAEEENRENERERER - XAENELFEFTZHIHE -

Hig  RBBEXRHE  EXRSERTEMBRBHEEHRRIRE (SMEEZIRA) RIUMNIMEEZFIEZERE - I
REFEES - BENER=S_=F=A+h AR -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

The Group
REERE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
EEREHDE and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
EEmEhEa
DNEE ~ DGR ~ #EE
Research  Others RM=TRE B RTHEAE
Rl Hith BRI EEE Hiih EE ]
Balance - Beginning ~ E#I&ER
of Year
Subventions Received/ BEWI/FE
Receivable =41
Recognised as income ZRERNTER
in the year HIUZA
Transferred to HERTE
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEE
Balance - End of Year F#&#58%
To be recognised: 1SR
Within 1 year —FRN
After 1 year —&Fi&
2016
Balance - Beginning FYEERR 420,979 206,315 232,064 53,060 2,994 915,412
of Year
Subventions Received/ YU 150,763 55,512 80,881 125,796 82,660 495,612
Receivable =10
Recognised as income SRR (212,460) (68,752) (27,291) (90,156) (36,227) (434,886)
in the year HIUZA
Transferred to BEIELE (8,013)  (3,389) (52,292) (11,904) (998) (76,596)
Deferred Capital Funds EEEE
Balance - End of Year fE#&#4583 351,269 189,686 233,362 76,796 48,429 899,542
To be recognised: A HEERTE -
Within 1 year —FRN 214,763 - 233,362 76,796 40,774 565,695
After 1 year —Fig 136,506 189,686 - - 7,655 333,847
899,542

351,269 189,686 233,362

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.

76,796

48,429
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)
The University

KE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
EERREIE and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
BEmmen
oHEE ~ TNEE - M2
Research  Others NM=ETRE B AT e
IR Hith BRI 1B Hith B
Balance - Beginning  F#)#8
of Year
Subventions Received/ BUL/FEIR
Receivable [=1:
Recognised as income ZAFAER
in the year HIUZA
Transferred to BEIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EEEE
Balance - End of Year E#£48%
To be recognised: ASREERTE
Within 1 year —FRN
After 1 year —iFi&
2016
Balance - Beginning FEVERR 420,979 206,315 232,064 53,060 2,994 915,412
of Year
Subventions Received/ SYU/FEI 150,763 55,512 80,881 125,796 82,660 495,612
Receivable =1:
in the year FIYA
Transferred to WEIET (8,013)  (3,389) (52,292) (11,904) (998) (76,596)
Deferred Capital Funds BEEE
Balance - End of Year #5483 351,269 189,686 233,362 76,796 48,429 899,542
To be recognised: IS HEERTE
Within 1 year —FR 214,763 - 233,362 76,796 40,774 565,695
After 1 year —5i& 136,506 189,686 - - 7,655 333,847
351,269 189,686 233,362 76,796 48,429 899,542

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5lR)

The Group and the University

REEENAE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEERERHIE and Government
AA&I* Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
EHiZenEe
DSGE ~ hN3E ~ S
Research Others RM=TE - BFFEE
IR Hith BRI B Hitt b
Balance - 1 July 2015 —E-hfF
+tRA—B#8k 14,075 4,542 3,498,343 17,877 106 3,534,943
Transfer from Deferred ERIEIE 8,013 3,389 52,292 11,904 998 76,596
Income Y is
Transfer to the Statement of EBEZEWXRER (5835) (1,985) (153,828)  (8,433) (189) (170,270)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Balance - 30 June 2016 —T—7%
~A=1tH#%8R 16,253 5,946 3,396,807 21,348 915 3,441,269

Transfer from Deferred HEET
Income Y
Transfer to the Statement of HEEZHEIZE
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2017 Z=%¥—t%&F
~A=1TA4&

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.
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Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their
Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges
have received from time to time donations from
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EABLENEERLDBALTER, FIAEREENS
EEBSNERANERE - KBRHERTEREDNK
8 ARBXEEEAS  NHEFNASDRZHEAR
ZRNEUEUER < BELBRE SR LRABRES
WARBAR B ERRANHL AR R -

ABHIEEEEBENRENRERE AERIER A
MATHEABRESNE BN SFAFRNMERN - BiEL
REIIRBABN M ERAEIEENRBERET -

FREARMF RS EMEMD RIRENR S NSRS - TG
BUTHRRETRS:

(BT TR

The University

RE
2016
(i) Income received from (i) KMBASESHKEIE
Subsidiaries
Service fees and rental charges RSB RS 25478

The Group and the

University
REBERE U AE
2016
(i) Key Management Personnel (i) FEEBASHIE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits HENHMIEHRESEF 47,822
Post-employment benefits RIRER 5,355
_83477.
The Group and the
University
REERERAE
2016
(iii) Loans to Related Parties (iii) B RS
Loans to key management under the ABHBESERETET
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 26) TREBAS(MEE 26)
Beginning of the year RE 7,630
Net loans granted during the year TEAZFEER 4,000
End of the year RELL 11,630



Staff loans, with interest at Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus an interest spread
and capped at prime rate minus another interest
spread, are available to eligible staff members of
the retirement scheme(s) operated by the University.
The loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry
of loan term due at the end of each calendar year
unless renewed by the University.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ABRHUEMTFESEBABRRETEIANHES -
MRLSFERTEARKFEMAIRESRE - WAFKEBEF
RREF—HNREBRBLIR - RIEABRAMESTRE
- SAREREREFFENEREBEARERS
BRTBE -

(BT IR

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2017 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REF—tFAA=TH  REUBBRREBERIREINAT :

The Group The University
RERERE RE
2016 2016
Capital Expenditure Commitments  EZS&IE
Contracted for =450 313,335 312,338
Authorised but not Contracted for EIZEENREL 1,016,707 1,005,296
1,330,042 1,317,634

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UEBETFTIR)

At 30 June 2017, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
REZ—tEAA=1H ' RETURRNESHESE - SREBINSRERSIABEITOT -

The Group The University
REEGS RE
2016 2016
Within one year —FR 14,165 11,971
Between one to five years —ZhF 9,427 9,415
23,592 21,386

7
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT T5lR)

At 30 June 2017, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

REF—EFAA=TH  REFURRNEEEE - SREINSREEERBERHINAT -

The Group The University
REEER RE
2016 2016
Within one year —FR 7,590 7,562
Between one to five years —ZhF 6,560 6,560
14,150 14,122
Operating lease charges for the year kéFpsicssinESEE

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws of
the Government which objects are to provide learning
and research in wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The Group defines capital as including various
general and restricted fund balances. The various
funds of the Group represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fee income,
donations and investment returns. These funds
are managed according to the relevant grant and
funding conditions, where applicable, and the
Group’s investment and financial management
guidelines and procedures are established in
accordance with the relevant statutes of the Group
with the view of meeting the objects of the Group
and safeguarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the Group’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements, except for the balance of
GDREF as disclosed in note 12.

12,776 12,373

AARBEETEBFITHREEE RN —FRERRE
BINE ERERE - BEERUAMRELARRRER
M - M8 - B3R - XBREMBENEE RIS - X
SWENTERHRANMEE - 28 - BENE 8
BEBERENRARMSEORSEER -

ABRENEREREE—RESNSRESE - KEE
RNSEEEHETREAWERNMHEIE - WE - 18
RIS B IR FTAERY - ZEFEERRIBEREIER
HOMBNE RISMAIRIERE - MiRE - MIFEEESIN
EFEREABREIETRNRE ENREN SRR
HEERMERDRENELEEN -

FRRTEE1 2P PRI — AR R R RERE I - KBR
EMESEEBREFFAER - WEHHNE - MAL
FZHERE[MIMRAEMANERER -
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Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity
price risks arising in the normal course of the
Group’s and the University’s operations. These risks
are managed by the Group’s and the University’s
financial management policies and practices as
described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partner-
ships and alternative investments

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s and the University’s exposure
to credit risk is mainly attributable to the
deposits they maintained with various financial
institutions and investment securities held by
fund managers, including held-to-maturity debt
securities and trading securities. The Group
and the University established their guidelines
to minimise the credit risk associated with these
financial assets. Held-to-maturity debt securities
are all at “investment grade” credit ratings as
assigned by international credit rating agencies
at the time of purchase. Trading securities
are all of good investment grade and are held
through appointed professional investment
managers who would manage the portfolios
through comprehensive monitoring systems.
The Group and the University have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

AEEBRASNEMT REERTER - BFES
BAES « EfSREENRE - REGBRENLSE
158 - ZHREED - SLEERMTEMEHNERERE
FERER - REERER - FIRER @ IMNERBR SRR
BB - KEZENAZRATIINERMEEBERL
BN RS IRt B o

3.1 RMITER - BHBES - RAES - BUFREENER
& - RESBRERSERE
(i) EEER

AERELASREHNNESARERRBFHRR
TRMBHIENTRNESRECHERSMESR
& AEBEEINHAREESAUEERES - K
BEERABEHETHERES S LS EEEREN
EEEBRERE - HEEEHENESEBAR
BT AR R BIRR S BT AR MIBFTRTE R TR EMRAN
s T EEEFIBRIFIRERR @ WEBET
MERRELEREREZEANRZERAEE - X
BEENASNEE AR MEAZ R PR L
1B MEBEAMRRENRET °

RRERTERNERRR - KBEERABHAEE
BERRABERIRFN A RIFE SRR aT #AE(
i) ARREREEFEESPHER - SRS
HITEFRIE BN R RS -

EREMEEMBRIRFIERENE SRR+ 2E
W REBENABHTEOWNERTCELRE
1505 o

Gt ROMBERERTEEERERERRLIEEE
EIERR RTINS <)
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(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to

(i) B ESEE

AERELARBHEANRENE T AB(THEZEF
& IREHRFIEHERRENRKRSEESNT
2 DEASEEARSES LoIEREFENTESH

regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest

5 UEFRZE -

PTF—EBRINHABEERABEEAZBERRR
settlement dates of the Group’s and the ZTEER - BTHREHZRINRIRERE(BEUEH
University’s financial liabilities at the end of the FIRHAEWFE LT » SHFIRIZENFIZREF
reporting period, which are based on contractual B+ BIRIRAE O 2R R E)

undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or,

if floating, based on current rates at the end of

the reporting period):

(@) The Group ~ REEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT rT5lImR)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

REMNZKRIFREERLE

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years

—FR  @E—F BE-—E I1E
REE® grEk e-Ex EBREER 0 MR-

Accounts Payable and  FE{TIRER M FEST

Accruals &R
Provision for Employee {&SaF|#EfH
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings {&5

2016

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—FR iR BE—EF htF
REERE gmEx  E-FER BREER ME @E

Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFR A FERT 969,581 969,581 - - - 969,581
Accruals = {z:|

Provision for Employee &S &H# (& 671,981 463,103 148,638 60,240 - 671,981
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings & 105,549 81,099 6,275 12,000 8,000 107,374

1,747,111 1,513,783 154,913 72,240 8,000 1,748,936




(b) The University E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT THIR)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

REMZARITRREREE

As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits
and debt securities.

The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are not significant.
The Group does not expect short-term fluctuations
in market interest rates will have significant impact
to the Group’s results of operations.

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—FR  BE—F @B-E AT
REZ®  gwmxr  E-FA EREA ME
Accounts Payable and  F&EfTIRFRAFER
Accruals &H
Provision for Employee &S &%
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&TX
2016
Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and amount
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—FR iR BR—F heE
REEE  gmEk  @-ER EEFER 0 NE  @8E
Accounts Payable and FE(TIRFARFERTER 1,160,621 1,160,621 - - - 1,160,621
Accruals
Provision for Employee {EEaHI#EfE 669,449 460,960 148,249 60,240 - 669,449
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &R 105,549 81,099 6,275 12,000 8,000 107,374
1,935,619 1,702,680 154,524 72,240 8,000 1,937,444
(iii) Interest rate risk (iii) IR @S

HREENSWaNEREE - KBERENAED
RIS EESNRITERNERES

ABEREREERTRFEANTEEMER - K
SRS RNERRTE TSR ABRE
MEBGRIBMEANRE -
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During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest
rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(a) The Group FoEazLpe

REHBEE - KERERABIYZBRTEERM
FHENREFNTE  ARELTFEEREARET
fEEsTE - MEENAREARZHERNETHRE -

MF—BRIEEIRASMASHEECBREFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E*TFT5lR)
2016
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BERFAR RESHE BREFENXR REZHE
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBNTER 1.96 12,945,348
(b) The University K2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AE¥TF7T5lR)
2016
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BERFAR RESHE BRFENXR REZHE
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBENTEMR 1.99 12,167,921



As at 30 June 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $60,173,000 (2016:
$48,695,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to interest rate
risk for investments in short-term time deposits
in existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/Decrease
in investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (“‘HKD”). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (“USD”) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 27% of the Group’s and 30% of the
University’s financial assets (including cash,
bank deposits with banks, debt, equity securities
and investments) are denominated in USD,
but it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the end of the reporting
period:

REF—tFARA=TH  BERAFEMITEEE
BRETE - WARENED AT - KBRE
REANBRSEINBEIONTEI—TEE=TFTR
(ZB—REF : IFN\EATABRTT)

LlRE ST ERR R RNEENEE A 2
& - WERARASREERZHMRITRATFMATR
ZHFIRELR - ARESEERERTEHEN
BRI RGN ZFIREESEEIRE RN
& AREEERU ENSREIN D - B/
A+ FRIEEEBHEETRAE HILIEEFI=X
V&I O] REEBNRIETAE

(iv) SMERRR

ABERORABNINERERSER  ERMEEMN
BBEEERTRE  MEBMHABUEBRE &%
MHEENMSRAMIMSEENSELFAK -

ABERRABRHEUXRTAEEEBNERNEE
ANZEERMEERBENBSZ=TEtNEAZ=
T EFERE FHRETER  RE - RERE
&) - BEEFEHNTHERRABEETEBEST
MERERFIRT - AEEEERRETHERE
RECZBBRTEK -

MF-—BRIHEEAUSEEEREEERBNE
MEECER(EERE - FRRRTNER - BB
RigE)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) The Group REEE

(UEBETFTIR)

2016
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
&8 LRSS bt AR ERE
Currency &g ENEALL ENE S
HKD A 11,219,067 64
usD =TT 4,454,041 25
RMB AR# 1,383,503 9
Euro ERTT 63,719 -
Japanese Yen Hit 12,283 -
Pounds Sterling g 81,899 1
Others Hith 254,515 1

(b) The University RE

17,469,027 100

2016
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
&8 HAEERE =8 AERE
Currency E#& F=3:01=ha o d ENEoL
HKD K 10,447,228 64
usD =TT 4,137,367 25
RMB AR# 1,260,859 8
Euro ERTT 63,659 -
Japanese Yen Bt 12,283 -
Pounds Sterling REE 73,681 1
Others Hith 248,922 2
16,243,999 100

About 6% of the Group’s and 7% of the University’s
financial assets are denominated in RMB. As the
percentages of financial assets denominated in
currencies other than HKD, RMB and USD to
the total financial assets of the Group and the
University were 2% and 2% respectively as at
30 June 2017 (2016: 2% and 3% respectively),
exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant.

AREBRENABRHEUARBREEERNENEE
BRAAMEEREERENT A MBI - &
“F—tFAA=TH  ABRERASUEE -
ARBIETUIIMEREE C ERMEEGRER
EEENRBEEAIZ-R- (ZF5—RE: 2RIRAE
BAC=RZ) » MABEERASB]RERZHIME
[E Bl A o



(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 16). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices
of the respective listed equity securities and
unit trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and
the University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $112,359,000
(2016: $94,968,000) and $86,121,000 (2016:
$73,704,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and
unit trusts by trading market at the end of the
reporting period:

REERERE

ABEELASFREENERERRREERE D
BRUEERSF THRSESREMETES (M
#t16) - REERARBERGEEEEB MM
I ERR T R EEBRESRE - MBREKHE
HIRT i E RS R R IRBEA S FRHIF TR E N EE
DECES| - ABBERABTEERTEMBE LR
EEENERRS UAFTEEE - KBRIERAKEM
BENRTESNEMEREESSHNRERSEE
B=EmS -

REEH  ERFEESAEMERESNER LA/
THEAZEH - EH— T ERRIERFTEN
BRT  RBRERASREANELR SR LH
REESLEMEIESNATEEEE 0 25
EmEP—R—F=a=+aBhTr (ZF—R
F  ATFEEATABNTFRENTFRE—T=8
—Fx (ZT—RF : tF=Bt+EBETETT) °

AT —EBRIIBEEEARBRELABRETERR
SmsZ LhREREMEAEENERE :

(@) The Group REERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE¥TT5IR)
2016
Equities  Unit Trusts Equities Unit Trusts Total

Market 15 BAES BAuEFRER BEANEE BuEREEs 88
United States £ 669,945 210,604 880,549
Hong Kong & 418,736 391,934 810,670
Europe &R 164,690 - 164,690
Japan A7 12,283 - 12,283
Asia Pacific DAE - - 7,031 7,031

excluding BHEN

Hong Kong HASERSH

and Japan
Others Hith 24,138 - 24,138

1,289,792 609,569 1,899,361
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(b) The University HE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAB#TFTTHIR)
2016

Equities  Unit Trusts Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market 5 KRS BEMEEEE BAES EMEREE B85
United States EE 669,945 210,604 880,549
Hong Kong &BE 58,479 333,936 392,415
Europe BRiM 164,690 - 164,690
Japan B7s 12,283 - 12,283
Others EHh 24,138 - 24,138

31.2 Limited partnerships and alternative

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk, where applicable, of
the underlying assets through diversifications of
their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
will not have significantimpact on the Group’s daily
operations.

929,535 544,540 1,474,075

M2RESBIREARSERE

RESBRELSBRENEEERRIRERPIEE
EHANEE) - ABERENABHBEEGRHEETH
REZEERNTRIMEIRENEIE - BEEMER
ENEEEEEREERERRAIABETLEERS
HOAEER - fhfYE B SIRTMAE RS (DB E -
EHENHER  HEATH BERBIREETASZE
EEMBENGE - RBEE - R IELKRTER
MER - EMBERENESTIFREBHABRHETE
WEESRHNEEMHME - TBEERBINRER
BARBHRFRE - WFRENEHRELTZREX
SERENAEEE -



(i)

The following table shows the amounts of asset
allocation in the limited partnerships at the end
of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REER GRS

(i) KF—BRIHRGEEERESBIREEES RN
B

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAFE¥TFTTHITR)
2016

£ % L] %
Hedge Funds HihEE 274,711 19
Cash RE 57,689 4
Private Equity FhERGE 307,128 22
Real Estate ElthE 169,724 12
Fixed Income EEWA 111,258 8
International Equity IREKBG S 354,378 25
Natural Resources RAREIR 141,440 10
Others Hith 4175 -
Total e 1,420,503 100

The following table shows the amounts of
asset allocation in alternative investments
at the end of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REERNAE

(i) MF—BRIHREE A S EIREEENRNE
2\

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BAFE#FTHImR)
2016
=8 % £ %
Hedge Funds HinEE 225,964 62
Real Estate EithE 55,855 15
Private Equity FAE R 82,452 23
Total b 364,271 100
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31.3 Fair value measurement

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2017 and 2016.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for held-to-maturity debt securities are
based on their trading values in the secondary
market on or nearest to the end of the reporting
period.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by the General Partner of the partnership
and the administrators or investment managers
of the alternative investments. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS13, Fair value measurement defined the
category of three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
siginificant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the end of the
respective reporting periods on a recurring basis,
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised:

31.3 AREEFE

FrEEMIAR-S—tEATF—ARFA=1HN
REEHEAREBEREASR -

LHRE - BEESREAERESNAABERRE
EMREEENTSEABMIE

JE LM EHNER C AR EER R GRS
REMGEE -

HAEEIMACEBESNARBERRBEE ANE
ITHRME—FRFTIENEMESRRE -

HRREGBIRENSERERFELRTEEE K
SBERERTHIIRNOAEZEREGBARSER
B HESEENTZHNERIRER - 78 -
ZiETEEE LTS ETEENEEFEER

EBERMBEREENE135% " AAEEFE, RE=E
AREEEE ARBEERELAEEFTERED
HABEDERN T EERTDHBNERENESET
MEE :

- E-SMHE  RERE-SRHABEREEE
o & EHE B R EE IS M R AT R R () 2R
ENREE -

- BEERMGE  ERFSERBAEEIKRESE—F
BNTBRERRAB)AEREATTEEEA GRS
EQREE - FTUHRTREABRERRHIZHIEN
BWAE -

- BEEFRGE  RAEATTEERABRIERD
REE -

MF—ERIELEREHZBELRBEFEMEA
EMTRRAALEESFRIEUT A



(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group FoEARLEE

BOREETIRNEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (B FTTEIR)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

FiR— Fih— £
Trading Securities o EERS
Available-for-sale Securities ot EES
Limited Partnership Investments REGBIRE
Alternative Investments SiEgE
Total b

2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ER— Fih— EH= B;m
Trading Securities oEEES 2,298,431 122,105 - 2,420,536
Available-for-sale Securities ot ERES 213,086 - - 213,086
Limited Partnership Investments RESBEE - - 1,420,503 1,420,503
Alternative Investments SiENE - - 364,271 364,271
Total FbE] 2,511,517 122,105 1,784,774 4,418,396
The University X2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEBETFTTIIR)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

FiR— FR= FR=
Trading Securities EER
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIRE
Alternative Investments SE|igE
Total 48z

2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Eih— EE3 1 Eih= am
Trading Securities o ESES 2,086,230 122,105 - 2,208,335
Limited Partnership Investments RE&BIZE - - 1,420,503 1,420,503
Alternative Investments SEKRE - - 364,271 364,271
Total FEE]

2,086,230 122,105 1,784,774

3,993,109
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During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the fund managers and
have been translated using the foreign currency at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning balances to the ending balances
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:

The Group and the University = KE3ZEEERKE

TFRKRBERESFR—HEFR-—ZHEZHE -

BREZGESNARBENSZESIERFRRMZR
SHERMET  AERRSHRCERITE

UF—BRITABEERAERERLABEZTR
=HNERMT R FHEFEEREE)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
Opening balance as at 1 July 2016 FHEER
Total gain included in the Statements of EaEEEEERRRD

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure HI42ESE
Additions B
Disposals HE
Closing balance as at 30 June 2017 FHREEER

2016

Opening balance as at 1 July 2015 FMEEER 1,821,451
Total loss included in the Statements of caeEEREKSEERY (8,293)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Ry &S
Additions B 12,640
Disposals HE (41,024)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2016 FEREERR 1,784,774

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the years ended 30 June 2017
and 30 June 2016.

REERRABHENSFR=SMTR #="%—
tEARA=TAAZS-—AREA=THNEREHE
EEWRESR



The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the investments in the three limited
partnerships and the alternative investments
arranged by an investment consultant in the United
States as detailed in Note 31.2.

The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are not traded in active markets. In the
absence of an active market, an investment’s fair
value is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects and other factors, as well as by reference
to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
an active market. Given the bespoke nature of the
analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical
to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. The US-based firm of investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds
of hedge funds, private equity funds, real
estate funds and natural resources funds had
increased/decreased by 5% and the fair values
of assets under “Fixed Income” and “Others”
of the Level 3 financial assets had increased/
decreased by 5% and

ARBEELABNEFR=CEHEESIEME31.212
EH=EREEBEENH—HXBERERR LR
BB EIRE -

REEENABNER=ERNEELIFNTRERE
TISETESR - MRERENRZIGERNTE  HA
ARENGFRIRERE R RN ENR NSRS - BRI
- ARMEMER O - BESRRTIGERETS
REMTURRHEGE - ARG SEREZANS
BAE > FIH— R ERFTBRRRBA A EAIT ©

BARBBRENABRSEFR=CEMEENAREE
MERREGBREENEIEBANSEREINEEE
FHESERNTMRHENENIRRERRITERSEN
% - BREEGBARABRENIRESEERTEN
HEEfR - HEFLTRANLREE - KBEERIR
KB EBEAASIMAET - HhSREZERES
BREMNIPES  WEREES - BERS - XA
ERES)HRENER R EHENEEINRE —ENA
AR - ARFEINOREENBENIEMET
HIRIRA T ERIRAGRIIOIE - ZEFEBHELaTA
REARBRERENABRHNER=EREENLAE
EFENEREERREIITNELEE -

e

(i) ERHSEZERAMMERRETES - AERE
EE RBEHEEENRAEREENEHLA/T
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(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level 3
financial assets, and hence the Group’s and the
University’s surplus would have increased/decreased
by approximately $103,242,000 (2016: $86,354,000).

(b) Financial assets carried at other than fair value

The Group RERER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Carrying
amount at

Fair value
at 30 June

30 June 2017 2017
RIB—tEFE RIZ—tHF

(i) REIRH/FEGISRENES LA/ THRES L
FH

MEMTENERRETE - KBBELRABHNER
EREMEENARBENABREENABRFEAN
ERSENREIM—ET=ZE=TRE=FR (=%
—AE  \FARE=TABNEFT) -

FURAREEFIRDEHMEE

(ABEEFTIIR)

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2017
R-S—t&FAA=+H
BRnBERFE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value
amountat  at 30 June

30 June 2016 2016

RES—RTF RIS—RE

Carrying

~B=+H ~B=1+H ARB=+H AXB=1+H
HIREEEE HRREE SH— FH= FR= MIRESE MAREE
Held-to-maturity ~ #E=EI4A 3,206,272 3,257,365
debt securities &5
The University X2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFTTHIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2017
RIZ—t&FXA=1H
Carrying Fair value BAORBEERE Carrying  Fair value
amount at at30 June |evel1 Level2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 2016
RIS—tF RIS—tF RES—RTF RIS—RE
~B=+H ~B=1+H ARB=+H AXB=1+H
HIREEEE HoRERE SH— FH= EH= MIRESE MARER
Held-to-maturity ~ #E&ZEIHH 3,121,363 3,172,072
debt securities & 55

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the banks and have
been translated using the foreign currency at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

BREZGESNARBEDSERTARERCEREH
BEMET @ LERRSHRZERRE -



31.4 Interests in investment funds

The University holds interests in investment funds
investing in the following asset classes. The purpose
of these investment funds is to generate investment
income for the University. These investment funds
are managed by professional fund managers.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
University in these investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held.

Investment fund classes

M4 RBETAMNER

ABHEBRENTIEEGINREE SN - BEIR
EESNENER/ABRIUIENA - BEREEER
HEREREEMER -

PTF—BRINHASBHRIREREE B - IREEM
RANBRKEESEREENREE

Carrying amount
Number of included in financial
Investment assets at fair value
funds through profit or loss

BEESER REES CREBESNUAR
HE EBESIRNEREE
HINRE & 2E
HKD’million
BE&ETT
Equities =
Fixed Income EERA
Hedge Funds HihEE
Real Estate BEitE
Private Equity hERE
Limited Partnership [REABIRE
Total L
2016
Carrying amount
Number of included in financial
Investment assets at fair value
Investment fund classes funds  through profit or loss
KREESER HEEE CIEESMRUAR
o= EBEFIRNEREE
HINRE 28
HKD’million
BE&TT
Equities BE 17 1,002
Fixed Income TFEWA 2 122
Hedge Funds HipES 8 226
Real Estate EithE 4 56
Private Equity hERE 5 82
Limited Partnership [RESBIYE 3 1,421
Total #Em 2,909
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The carrying amount of such investments included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is the same as the fund price per unit multiplied by
number of units held, or the total net assets if the unit
information is not available. The carrying amount
constitutes less than 1% of the appropriate total
net assets of the underlying investment funds as at
30 June 2017 (2016: less than 1%). Such carrying
amount represents the maximum exposure of the
University at the end of the reporting period.

All the above investment funds are passive
investments only. The University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these
funds.

The University can redeem the above investment
funds within one business day to one year,
depending on the requirement of each investment
fund.

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

RZF—tFEAA=1H ' EFEERNUAREES
RN EMEENRESRESEMESERRUSFEE
U RERBFEMENR  HBEEFEMER - R
EERGHEFIREEESCRTFEEI % (ZT—K
F: PR1%) - RIRAEBERRABREEHUERZ
E=EE

B EFRBIRE R MERNIE - KEGHEH - &
EaRHEMMBZEAU LEAES -

AR EIREESNRRFAR - KBAUFDR—EL
EREA SR —FHREA - WO EEE -

AREBEELABNEEEE - SMEMGRTTRAFERAE
BREME - MEGHGNETIREG - 85 KABEELAE
EESETEENTRFRAZGEENRESESE
FRARNTES L - TRFRAZGEERENEE
BHRERSUEENER  RERERMIRARE
B o MBEMESTRIEEANRE - RRFHNITER<



Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 30 June 2017 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HETUBRRFLE - FESFENASRGSIRERT
RFreT 28 o FRFERT MA] AR EE"FT—EFX
B=1HILFEMAREN - MEMRESATEHRRPER
A - ZEENTHSEARASZZENE

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 16, Leases

1 January 2017
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2019

KT BRI MRt

EEGHERE7IRZIET] - RERER: IKEFE
EEMBRESEAEMR - ERHTH
BEEMBREEAE161F - FEEFSRNEA
HEUBREEANF 161% - HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into
consideration when determining whether to adopt
any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the
new standards. The Group does notintend to early
adopt any of these amendments or new standards.

20171810
2018 1H1H
2018 1H1H
2019%1A1H

A ERECIRIF T GRZFIERT MAa] R B R B FARART
K TRHARIE o TAXEBEEREFRAN - AT Rl B D EEiR T
REHABRRECGESMBBRRBREATE - ZEHRH
B ZE—THRBIR T Xt - HRABEERRHARTTHR
Al BREPORERIREMRE - ABRETRERS
REX H RIS R E LR EERRE G
(AT ER R A TR AR S ERZETE - KEE
RERRPEMEMZEFIEITHAETER -
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HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets,
calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS
9 incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts
of the new requirements on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

(i) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at
(1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The
classification is determined based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets and the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets. Based on
a preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that the new classification and measurement
requirements will not have a material impact on
its accounting for financial assets.
(ii) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 will
replace the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with an “expected credit loss” model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before
an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure
expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on
the Group’s other financial assets. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
the new impairment model will not have a material
impact on its accounting for accounts receivable
and other financial assets.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework for income
recognition. It introduces a five-step model in order
to determine when and how to recognise income.
Income is recognised when an entity transfers control
of goods or services to a customer at the amount to
which the entity expects to be entitled. The standard
is not expected to have any material impact to the
income recognition of the Group.

BEEMFREENFEMNR "EMTH,
EEMBREEAEMF "TERNITH, SRKERIA
BRTEEZRTEL  FESEEAFE3F TEMT
B BRAEE, - ERMBEREESEIRSIAER
EEEONTE - EREERENEREREFHEZH
RE - Z—FHHE BEEUBREENFIRNAETES
FTEERISE 3o AR AR LR EM T RUANEI D E
MEECRE  WREHEEEN - MREHABRE
I EMBRRERRZENT

(i) IR NETE
BEMBREEARIFEE =BT EEMEESFA
DRBABEMRAETE « QUAREEERRE
FFTABMER MO UAREETEREEHHAR
HEMZEE - SISERRRIBEEEENEELZR
BRAULENEECEHRERENE - BROL
- ABRERBHE D NEIERETSHERE
EZSREEREARTE -

(ii) AfE

ERMEmEEAEIRP ZEFRERR U TTERE
=gk, B EEEFERIEMRe "TEEEE
%1 BN - RIFFEHREEERER - BEBRGREE
REHEFHEDREEERK - MM - BIESIREE
ENREEBERERMGTEEREEERRATEA
FEEREEEREKATEHREEERX - FiREEN TS
BHASERERNHMEMEERDEEIER - 1%
RRYS TG - AEBRETRIATRNERN T 2 EKIR
MR HMEMEECSEEBERSEATE -

EEVBREENE 15 TEEEFEENKA |
BEWBREERSE 16IREE T AULABRIER -
BSIAT —ERLERE - MREE AR RN AR
A o INABEERS M RBNEREER AT FR
DHEFERESHEETUER - ZENFENTEY
AEEENPABREEEARE -



HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2.6, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, the Group will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases when it is the lessee under the lease. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, the Group will be
required to account for all leases of more than 12
months in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting.

The application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the Consolidated and
University Statements of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 29, at 30 June 2017 the Group’s
and the University’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
$24,187,000 and $21,479,000 respectively, which are
payable either within 1 year or between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS
16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that the Group accounts for its rights and
obligations under a lease when it is the lessor under
the lease.

BEEMBREENE 161% "HE,

WtEE2.6FTIRER - KBEERIEHEE S ARENR
BEREERE  URFHEIEUTAAABHEER
BRETTERTEE - KEREDNERSLBAREBA
RIIIARMEE -

—BERMNEEMBREENE 161% - REAGTBE
SREHEREEHEE - ML RIEEAETE
HETHE SUABASRERGHEHEESHE
BEREEUHARMEHEES T -ERAM MBS
EITERTEE -

TR ERFE RS ENEELAEIIRMEM - &
FEHEPRARGEMABEANZREDERZK
& o WMiEE29FRIREE  R°F—t&EARA=1TH " K
BEELRASRETTHHECEHERRFERET
RESNEEE _THNE—+N\BtTaMhEB=FT—
BE+tEA TRAERRS AR —FA—E1FRA
2T - Et - —BRMEEUEREEAE 160F - &F
MR DO RERERSEEEE - WG HRERESR
E - KEBBEETHEZERY - nBRRERMAEE
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